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Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House SA. 5}_ S%C_Z__/

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION fGU@ (M XQ\/Q

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services, Bureau of
Homeless and Housing Services to enter into a sole source amendment of an existing agreement with
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (Vendor # 177203-B001), 2 Industrial
Park Drive, Concord NH 03302 to provide State Grant In Aid Program, Homeless Housing Access Loan
Fund Program and Homeless Outreach Intervention Program, and Housing Security Guarantee
Program services in order to meet legally guaranteed security deposit defaults that exceed the current
contract encumbrance by increasing the Housing Security Guarantee Program funding amount by
$200,000, which increases the original contract amount from $546,928 to $746,928, effective upon
Governor and Executive Council approval, with no change to the original end date of June 30, 2015.
The Governor and Executive Council approved the original agreement on November 20, 2013 (ltem
#36).

Funds are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Years 2014, and 2015, with the
ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without Governor
and Executive Council approval, if needed and justified.

Please see attachment for fiscal details:

EXPLANATION

This request is a sole source amendment because it increases the original contract amount by
more than ten percent (10%). This sole source amendment increases funding to the Housing Security
Guarantee Program only. The original agreement included funding amounts for the Homeless Housing
and Access Fund and Homeless Qutreach Intervention Prevention programs, which remain unchanged.
The Housing Security Guarantee Program is designed to help alleviate situations where individuals and
households are threatened with immediate homelessness, is funded by the Housing Security
Guarantee Program through New Hampshire State Grant In Aid funds.

A Request for Proposal for the State Grant-in-Aid funds was issued at the annual NH Homeless
Provider and Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The Request for Proposal
was also posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’ website. Criteria for selection
included: proposal includes all elements and is assembled as required; program design and need for
project; performance measures and identified outcomes; coordination with community organizations
and resources; involvement with Continuum of Care/Local Service Delivery Area; soundness of
approach; cost proposal, budget and leveraging of resources; accurate and timely utilization of
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Homeless Management Information System; staff experience and credentials; compliance with rules,
statutes and life safety codes; increase in bed capacity; and increase in prevention/intervention or
essential services. Each applying organization was required to submit a separate proposal for each
program, which allowed for budgets and program models to be evaluated independently. Fifty (50)
separate proposals that could be funded through State Grant-In-Aid, from 35 organizations, were
evaluated and scored.

Providers under the Housing Security Guarantee Program guarantee security deposits to landlords
on behalf of qualified tenants. These guarantees are made pledging the 'full faith and credit of the
Department for the payment of the security deposit..." in the event of tenant defaults. This provider has
expended amounts for tenant defaults that exceed the current contract encumbrance, and the
Department is legally obligated under RSA 126-A and Administrative Rule He-M 1007 to reimburse
these funds. Current default obligations to the provider for State Fiscal Year 2014 total $102,456. The
average annual amount reimbursed to this provider each year, as administrator of the New Hampshire
Housing Security Guarantee Program, was $120,949 from State Fiscal Year 2009 through State Fiscal
Year 2013. Historical data indicates that similar funding will be required in State Fiscal Year 2015.

RSA 126-A:51 allows the Department to enter into a contract with a vendor for the
administration of this program, which has been the Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc. since 1994, who also acts as the fiscal agent for this program. Housing Security
Guarantee Loan Programs are functioning in all counties through five community action agencies and
two community-based nonprofit homeless prevention/intervention service providers. The Housing
Security Guarantee Program guarantees payment of security deposits to landlords in instances where
low-income households cannot afford a security deposit. Typically, tenants make monthly payments to
the administrative agency until the full amount of their security deposit is collected. That amount is then
forwarded to the landlord. Even if the tenant defaults before the entire amount is paid, the
administrative agency is still responsible for payment in the full amount to the landlord.

Similar to the State Grant-In-Aid Request for Proposal, this Request for Proposals was also
issued at the annual NH Homeless Providers and Homeless Education Liaisons Conference on
October 24, 2012. The Request for Proposals was also posted on the Department of Health and
Human Services’ website.

Security deposit vouchers are available to persons who are considered “very low income”
according to the US Department of Housing and Urban Development. These are traditionally
individuals that do not qualify for bank financing and face homelessness without this assistance.
Repayment terms are scheduled according to the ability of individuals to repay. As a part of this
program, participating individuals also receive budget counseling and other supportive services to
assist them in maintaining independence. Repayment efforts are made by phone, by mail and personal
contact. The high repayment rate of program participants is an indication of successful repayment
arrangements by service providers.

The impressive results of this program are well documented. This program replaced cash
assistance grants for security deposits to prevent homelessness with a voucher-based loan program for
those at the lowest income scale. This means money that, in the past, would have been an outright
grant to very low-income households is now being repaid by clients over time. From 1994 to 2013,
$7,015,258.74 in vouchers has been issued. Of this amount, 72% have resulted in successful tenancy.
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Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request, shelter and
homeless prevention resources for people who are homeless may not be available in their
communities, and there will be an increase in demand for services placed upon the region’s local
welfare authorities. Further, an ongoing project may not be able to continue, causing many individuals
and/or families to become homeless. People who are without housing and resources will resort to
seeking shelter in places that are not fit for habitation, or will attempt to travel to shelters in other
communities. This will increase the likelihood that people who are homeless will be in danger of injury
or death, and will be cut off from basic supports for housing, health, education and treatment.
Numerous jobs would also be lost since the shelter and/or resource agency would have to close its
doors or drastically reduce staff.

Area served: Belknap and Merrimack Counties
Source of funds:

State Grant in Aid - 100% General Funds: $200,000

Respectfully submitted,

Q&&ﬁ\
Approved by:

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Fiscal Details for
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties
State Grant In-Aid Program, Homeless Housing and Access L.oan Fund
Program, Housing Security Guarantee Program and Homeless Outreach

Intervention Program

05-95-42-423010-7925 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOMELESS HOUSING ACCESS FUND

Fiscal o ) _ Curfe_nt Increase Revi_s_ed
Year Appropriation Class/Object | Class Title Modified | (Decrease) | Modified
Budget Amount Budget
Contracts for
2014 | 05-095-42-423010-7925 | 102-500731 program $8,375 $0 $8,375
services
Contracts for
2015 | 05-095-42-423010-7925 | 102-500731 program $8,375 $0 $8,375
services ’
Sub-Total $16,750 $0 $16,750

05-95-42-423010-7928 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,

HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, EMERGENCY SHELTERS

Fiscal » ) ] Currgpt Increase Revi:tsgd
Year Appropriation Class/Object | Class Title Modified (Decrease) | Modified
Budget Amount Budget
Contracts for
2014 | 05-095-42-423010-7928 | 102-500731 program $221,984 $100,000 $321,984
services
Contracts for
2015 | 05-095-42-423010-7928 | 102-500731 program $221,984 $100,000 $321,984
services
Sub-Total $443,968 $200,000 $643,968

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

Fiscal Current Increase Revised
Year Appropriation Class/Object | Class Title Modified (Decrease) | Modified
Budget Amount Budget
Contracts
2014 | 05-095-42-423010-7927 102-500731 for program $86,210 $0 $86,210
services
Sub-Total $86,210 $0 $86,210
Grand Total | $546,928 $200,000 | $746,928




A Request for Proposal for state funding was issued at the annual NH Homeless Provider and
Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The Request for Proposal was
also posted on the Department of Heaith and Human Services’ website.

Shelter Programs Evaluation Score| HMIS Utilization | Total Score
Laconia Area Community 98 9.8 107.8
Front Door Agency 95 10 105
Families in Transition - Concord 92.5 10 102.5
Helping Hands Outreach Ministries 92 8.6 100.6
Families in Transition - Family Place/Amherst 90.5 10 100.5
New Horizons for New Hampshire 90.5 9.5 100
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Keystone
Hall) 90 9.8 99.8
Families in Transition - Lowell St 89.5 10 99.5
Families in Transition - Family Place/Spruce St 89.5 10 99.5
Bridge House 90.5 8.6 99.1
Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter, Inc 88.5 10 98.5
Child and Family Services of New Hampshire 88 10 98
The Way Home 88.5 9.4 97.9
Families in Transition - Family Willows/Millyard I 88 9.2 97.2
Families in Transition - Manchester Emergency 86.5 10 96.5
Marguerite's Place, Inc 86.5 10 96.5
Harbor Homes Inc 86.5 9.8 96.3
Salvation Army - Laconia (Carey House) 87 9.1 96.1
Cross Roads House, Inc 845 10 94.5
Greater Nashua Interfaith Hospitality Network 85.5 8 93.5
My Friend's Place 82.5 9.5 92
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
\Violence 83 8 91
Samaritans (Mary's Place) 81 9 90
Southwestern Community Services - Claremont 80.5 8.5 89
New Generations, Inc 79 9.6 88.6
Friends Program 78.5 10 88.5
First Congregational Church 81.5 6.5 88
Salvation Army - Concord (McKenna House) 78 10 88
Southwestern Community Services - Keene 80.5 7 87.5
Headrest, Inc 79 4.7 83.7
\Veteran Homestead, Inc 75.5 8 83.5
Tri-County Community Action Program, inc (Tyler
Blaine) 75.5 7.5 83

Prevention Programs Evaluation Score

AIDS Response Seacoast 103

Southwestern Community Services 99

The Way Home 99

NH Legal Assistance 98.5

Harbor Homes, Inc a8

St. John Neumann Church Qutreach 98

Front Door Agency 97

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program 96.5

Belknap-Merrimack Community Action Program,

Inc - New Start 96




Strafford County Community Action Committee,

Inc 95
Belknap-Merrimack Community Action Program,

Inc - Prevention 93
NH 211 (United Ways of New Hampshire) - Hotel 92.5
NH 211 (United Ways of New Hampshire) -

Hotline 92
Child and Family Services of New Hampshire 91
Southern New Hampshire Services 89
Southern New Hampshire Services (Rockingham

IProgram) 89
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc 71
\Veteran Homestead, Inc 61

Due to the quantity of proposals received, the reviewers were organized into twelve (12) teams,
which met and presented their final evaluations and scores. The review committee teams
included the following individuals:

Natalie Allen, BA, MBA, Retired NH Department of Health and Human Services
Employee — Over 30 years of social services most recently as a Community Relations
Manager, served on the Local Service Delivery Areas of Concord and Laconia, and as a
member of the Balance of State Continuum of Care

Michael Bilson, BA, Program Planner |, Office of Consumer and Family Affairs, Bureau of
Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of
Health and Human Services

John Capuco, Psy. D, Administrator, Bureau of Developmental Services, Division of
Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Christopher Culiinan, BA, MPA, Manager of Ryan White CARE Program, Division of
Public Health, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Sharon Drake, BS, Chief Executive Officer, Serenity Place (an NCADD Affiliate)

Margaret Fogarty, MA, BA, Economic Justice Project Coordinator, American Friends
Service Committee '

Ellen Fries, BA, Concord Coalition to End Homelessness
Sherry Gould, Director, Wijokadoak, Inc

Bill Guinther, BA, Program Policy Analyst at New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority
(NHHFA) :

Janet Horne, Business Systems Analyst |, Bureau of Behavioral Health, Division of
Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

David Keller, Former Minister at Concord’s First Congregational Church

Janine A Lesser, BS, MS, Child Care Program Specialist IV, TANF Policy Unit, Division
of Family Assistance, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Sandra Matheson, Director, State Office Victim/Witness Assistance, NH Attorney
General's Office

William McGonagle, Assistant Commissioner, NH Department of Corrections

Niki Miller, MS, Senior Project Associate at Advocates for Human Potential, formerly
Administrator of Women Offenders for NH Department of Corrections



¢ Karen Orsini, MSN, RN, Director of Quality Improvement, Bureau of Behavioral Health,
Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human
Services

¢ Linda J Parker, BS, CPM, Program Specialist IV, Division of Community Based Care
Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

o Bernadette Pelczar, BA, MSW, Social Worker
e Kimberly Perez, PhD, Family HIV Program Manager, Dartmouth-Hitchcock

e Myriam Roeder, Adoption Manager, Division of Child, Youth and Families, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

¢ Todd Ringelstein, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of Developmental
Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

¢ Michael Rogers, MHA, MT, MC, Assistant Administrator, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and
Human Services

e Marianne Savarese, BS, RN, Project Director of Health Care for the Homeless Program

e Barbara Thorngren, M.Ed, Collaborative Education Consultant for PeaceWorks New
Hampshire, LLC

s Kristina Toth, BA, Administrator, Family Connections Center, NH Department of
Corrections

e Sally Varney, BA, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of Community
Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

e Dave Villiotti, MS, Executive Director, Nashua Children’s Home

o Donna Walker, BBA, MBA, Business Administrator 1V, Bureau of Behavioral Health,
Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human
Services '

e Kathleen Walton, Masters in Human Service Administration, Human Service Director,
Town of Salem

A funding distribution formula for State Grant-In-Aid was designed during March 2013, based on
the most current projections of State Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015 funding available at that time.
This total was approximately 4% more than the State Fiscal Years 2012 and 2013 total of State
Grant-In-Aid funding. One prevention program, Veteran Homestead, Inc, received a score of 61,
which was below the guideline score of 65; therefore, they were only awarded level funding for
their program. One shelter program, Veteran Homestead, Inc, was not funded, especially when
taking into consideration the placement of the proposal in the rankings of the shelter program
scores, because the proposal was for a new shelter request and not a renewal shelter request.



A Request for Proposal for state funding was issued at the annual NH Homeless
Provider and Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The Request
for Proposal was also posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’
website.

Homeless Housing Access Revolving Loan Fund

Programs Evaluation Score
The Way Home 98.5
Front Door Agency 97
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc 96
Southern New Hampshire Services 94
Southwestern Community Services 84.5
Belknap-Merrimack Community Action Program, Inc 81

As a result of this RFP, six proposals were received, evaluated and scored. All proposals
met or exceeded the minimum score required for funding.

Criteria for selection included: proposal includes all elements and is assembled as
required; program design and need for project; performance measures and identified
outcomes; staff experience and credentials; coordination with community organizations
and resources; involvement with Continuum of Care/Local Service Delivery Area;
soundness of approach; cost effectiveness and leveraging of resources; and compliance
with rules and statutes.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Amendment #1 to Contract
New Hampshire Housing Security Guarantee Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Housing Security Guarantee Program Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Housing Security Guarantee Program contract (hereinafter referred
to as “Amendment #1”) dated this May 12" day of 2014, is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department”) and the Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation with a place
of business at 2 industrial Park Drive, Concord, New Hampshire 03302.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on November 20, 2013 (ltem #36), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of
certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37 General Provisions, Paragraph 18, Amendment, the State
may amend the contract by written agreement of the parties upon approval of the Governor and
Executive Council;

WHEREAS the parties agree to change the Contract price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

To amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Iltem 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$746,928.00

2. Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, State Grant in Aid Program,
NH General Funds:, SFY 14, to read:

Not to exceed $330,359.00
3. Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, State Grant In Aid Program,
NH General Funds:, SFY 15, to read:
Not to exceed $330,359.00
4. Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, State Grant In Aid Program,
State Grant In Aid Program Budget detail, EXPENSE BUDGET for SFY14 and SFY15: is

deleted and replaced with Amendment #1 — Table 1, State Grant In Aid Program Budget
detail, EXPENSE BUDGET for SFY14 and SFY15.

5. Exhibit C-1, Additional Special Provisions is deleted and replaced with Amendment #1
Exhibit C-1, Additional Special Provisions.

CA/DHHS/100213

/4.
f‘/%/lﬁf



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Amendment #1 to Contract
New Hampshire Housing Security Guarantee Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and

/Mey | (,,20/7
Date <_J '

N|cholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

May 13, 2014 %A&ﬁ\‘@i\

Date Name: galph Rittlefield
Title: xecutive Director

Acknowledgement:
State of _New Hampshire , County of _Merrimack on __May 13,2014 , before the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Tty T L
G
athy oward, Notary Public

Name ana Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

KATHY L HOWARD

CA/DHHS/100213

J‘//s//h(



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Amendment #1 to Contract
New Hampshire Housing Security Guarantee Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

2314

Date

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213

K&
5/!3/#(



Amendment #1 —Table 1
State Grant In Aid Program Budget detail
EXPENSE BUDGET for SFY14 and SFY15:

State GIA Funds Match
$103,950.00 $103,950.00

EXPENSE ITEM

Prevention/Intervention

Rent with eviction notice, mortgage with
foreclosure notice, utilities with
disconnect notice, and other activities to
prevent homelessness

$140,018.00 $140,018.00

Essential Services (New Start)

Assistance in finding permanent
housing, employment counseling,
substance abuse counseling, assistance
in accessing other community services
and staff salaries and benefits

Operations NA NA
Shelter operational costs such as rent,

utilities, insurance, supplies and taxes

Amendment #1

Page 1 of 1

Homeless Housing and Access $16,750.00 NA

Revolving Loan Fund

Housing Security Guarantee $260,000.00 NA

Data Analysis $140,000.00 NA

TOTALS $660,718.00 $243,968.00

TOTAL GlA+Match $904,686.00 —
CAP Belknap-Merrimack Co., Inc. Table 1 Contractor nitials

Date




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 - Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in parn,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property
damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence with additional
general liability umbrella coverage of not less than $5,000,000; and

Amendment #1 - Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to Standard Provisions  Contractor Initials gﬁ _—%

CU/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 1 Date .§ [ES’ f ‘—(



State of Nefw Hampshive
HBepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK
COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed May 28, 1965. I
further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the

return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 10™ day of April A.D. 2014

Zy Sk
William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Dennis T. Martino, Secretary-Clerk of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. (hereinafter the “Corporation”), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (1) I am the
duly elected and acting Secretary-Clerk of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am
familiar with the minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with
respect to the contents of such books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have
authorized, on _12/12/13 | such authority to be in force and effect until 6/30/15

(contract termination date). (see attached)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of
the Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

Ralph Littlefield, Executive Director

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire, (state of
incorporation) law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been
modified, amended or rescinded and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof. Excerpt
of dated minutes or copy of article or section of authorizing by-law must be attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corporation

this_13th  dayof _May .2014 |
Secretary-Clerk
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF MERRIMACK
On this _ 13th _dayof _ May .20 14, before me, Kathy L. Howard the

undersigned Officer, personally appeared Dennis T. Martino  who acknowledged her/himself to be

the Secretary-Clerk of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., a corporation
and that she/he as such Secretary-Clerk being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument

for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

KATHY L HOWARD

Notary Publio, New Hampshire
Commission Expires October 16, 2018

Commission Expiration Date:

reUvovVvwe



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

CORPORATE RESOLUTION

The Board of Directors of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. authorizes the Executive Director, Deputy Director, Chief Accountant, President, Vice-
President(s) or Treasurer of the Agency to sign contracts and reports with the State of New
Hampshire, Departments of the Federal Government, which include all federal #269 and #272
Forms, and public or private nonprofit agencies including, but not limited to, the following:

e Department of Administrative Services for food distribution programs
e Department of Education for nutrition programs
e Department of Health and Human Services
— Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services for elderly programs
— Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services for homeless/housing programs
— Division of Children, Youth, and Families for child care programs
— Division of Family Assistance for Community Services Block Grant
— Division of Public Health Services for public health programs
Department of Justice for child advocacy/therapy programs
Department of Transportation-Public Transportation Bureau for transportation programs
Public Utilities Commission for utility assistance programs
Workforce Opportunity Council for employment and job training programs
Department of Resources and Economic Development
Governor’s Office of Energy and Planning for Head Start, Low Income Energy
Assistance, Weatherization and Block Grant programs
New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority
New Hampshire Secretary of State
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
U. S. Department of the Treasury — Internal Revenue Service
and other departments and divisions as required

This Resolution authorizes the signing of all supplementary and subsidiary documents
necessary to executing the authorized contracts as well as any modifications or amendments
relative to said contracts or agreements.

This Resolution was approved by the Board of Directors of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. on December 12, 2013, and has not been amended or revoked
and remains in effect as of the date listed below.

May 13, 2014 v V- m

Date Dennis T. Martino
Secretary/Clerk

SEAL

Agency Corporate Resolution
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MWDDIYYYY)
5/28/2014

PRODUCER (603)669-3218 FAX: (603)645-4331
Cross Insurance

Laura Perrin

1100 Elm Street

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION
ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE
HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR
ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW.

Manchester NH 03101 INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURED NsURERA-Arch Insurance Company

Community Action Program INSURER g: @BE

Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc. INSURER c: Hanover Insurance Co 18058
P.O. Box 1016 wnsurerp:N.H.M. M, JUA

Concord | NH 03302 INSURER E:

COVERAGES

THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING
ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR
MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OFSUCH
POLICIES. AGGREGATE LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR RDD‘L . POLICY NUMBER gﬂ.écv EFFECTIVE | POLICY EXPIRATION LMITS
| GENERAL LIABILITY _%%%}ECCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
TO RENTED
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISESC()Ea ocourrence) | $ 100,000
A L CLAIMS MADE [E OCCUR RCPKG02266000 6/17/2014 6/17/2015 | MEDEXP (Anyoneperson) | § 5,000
L PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
- GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/IOPAGG | § 2,000,000
pOLICY PRO: | X oc
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
| AUT COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
X | ANy AUTO (Ea acadent) $ 1,000,000
A | | ALLOWNED AUTOS NCAUT0226600 6/17/2014 | 6/17/2015 | aopiy iNJURY R
SCHEDULED AUTOS (Per persan)
HIRED AUTOS BODILY INJURY s
NON-OWNED AUTOS (Per accident)
[ PROPERTY DAMAGE s
{Per accident)
GARAGELIABILITY AUTO ONLY - EAACCIDENT | §
ANY AUTO OTHER THAN EAACC|$
AUTO ONLY: AGG | $
EXCESS/ UMBRELLA LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE H 5,000,000
X | occur D CLAIMS MADE AGGREGATE $ 5,000,000
$
A DEDUCTIBLE NCUMB02266000 6/17/2014 |6/17/2015 $
X | RETENTION 10,000 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU. OTH-
B | AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY vy FHC3000372 X | TORY s | |
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE @ (3a.) NH 6/17/2014 6/17/2015 | EL.EACHACCIDENT $ 500,000
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH) All officers included E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYER $ 500,000
If yes, describe under
SPECIAL PROVISIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000
A | OTHERDirectors & Officers [prsp727025 4/1/2014 4/1/2015 $1,000,000
c Blanket Crime V1649128 3/27/2014 3/27/2015 | 500,000
D Professional JUA11882 12/30/2013 [12/30/2014 |1 000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES / EXCLUSIONS ADDED BY ENDORSEMENT/ SPECIAL PROVISIONS
Refor to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLEDBEFORE THE EXPIRATION
DATE THEREOF, THE ISSUING INSURER WILL ENDEAVOR TO MAIL i DAYS WRITTEN
NOTICE TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER NAMED TO THE LEFT, BUT FAILURE TO DO SO SHALL
IMPOSE NO OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND UPON THE INSURER, ITS AGENTS OR

REPRESENTATIVES.
N ST

Laura Perrin/KS5

ACORD 25 (2009/01)
INS025 (200901)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
© 1988-2009 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

(Apprﬁoved by Agency Board of Directors on 02/24/05

as part of the Agency Bylaws.)

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The purpose the corporation includes providing assistance for the reduction of

poverty, the revitali
low-income families

tion of low-income communities, and the empowerment of
d individuals to become fully self-sufficient through planning

and coordinating the yse of a broad range of federal, state, local, and other assistance
(including private respurces) related to the elimination of poverty; the organization
of a range of services related to the needs of low-income families and individuals, so
that these services may have a measurable and potentially major impact on the

causes of poverty

d may help the families and individuals to achieve self-

sufficiency; the maximurn participation of residents of the low-income communities

and members of the

groups served to empower such residents and members to

respond to the unique [problems and needs within their communities; and to secure a

more active role in th

e provision of services for private, religious, charitable, and

neighborhood-based ¢rganizations, individual citizens, and business, labor, and

professional groups,
opportunities and servi

CAPBMCI Statement of Purpose

who are able to influence the quantity and quality of
ces for the poor.



Financial Statements

COMMUNITY ACTION PF OGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
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FREESOLASOCIION
Ta the Board of Directors: . CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACGOUNTANTS:
Community Action Program of Belknap—Memmack Countles lna WOLFEBORO + NORTH CONWAY
Concord, New Hampshire - ) DOVER » CONGORD-

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS! REPORT

Report on the Finanecial Statenients
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Commumty Action Program of
Beliknap-Merrimack Counfies, Inc. (a New Hampshlre nonprofit afganization), which comprise

the statements of financial position as of Fehiuary 28, 2018 and Febmary 29, 2012, and the
_ related statemehts of actlvft:es and cash flaws for the years then ended, and the related notes

Management’s Respnnsibmty for the- Fmanmal Statements .

Manhagement fs responisible for fhe preparation and falr presentation. of these finafnciil
statements ir-accordance with accounting prinelples generally- accapted in the United States of
America; this indudgs the design, fmplemeatation, and taintenance of inteimal cortral relevant
to the preparation aod falr presentation of financial statement.s that ate: free fmm raaterial
misstatement, whathier due 16 fraud of &tror. A

Auditor's Responslbzli‘ty

our fesponsibiiity is to express an opfnion on these finanell staterents hased oi bur Zudits,

We conducted our audits in accordante with auditing standards Qenerally atcepted In the
United States of Aerica and the standards applieible 1 financll audits chntatned in
Gopemment Auditihg Standards, issued by He Gomptrofler General of Y United ‘Steites,
Those staridsids require that we plan and perform the sudif to dbtati reasonabile assilarics
about whether the firandial staterrterits ars free froni materjal misstafernent,

An audit involves performing procedures to obizin audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures. selected depend bn the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment -of the Hsks af matetial risstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. Jn naking those usk assessmerits, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the en‘lity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
finaricial statemerits in order to design audit procedures that are apprdpnate in. the
cireumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opimon on the effectivéness of the
entity’s internal eontrol. Accordingly, we express ho sugh opinion. An audit aise includes
evaluatiig the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting eéstimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. .

We believe that the audit ewdence we have obtained is suffi clent and appropnate to provide a
basis for our audif opinion.



Opinion

In-our opinien, the financial statements refeired to above present fairly, in all material respects,
{he financial position of Community Action Pragfam of Belknap-Mertimack Gounties, Inc. as of
February 28, 2013 and 2012, and the changes in ifs net assets and its cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. ' ' : .
Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the putpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as.
a whole. The aceompanying sehedule of expenditures of federal awards; as required by Office:
of Management and Budget Cirgular A-133, Audits of Stafes, L.ocal Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is niot & required part
of the financial statements. Such informatiofi is the responsibility of management and was.
derived from and’ refates direslly to the underlying acsounting and other records used to
prepare the -finandal statements. The informiation has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the: audl of the finaneial statenments and ceraln additional procedures,
including cotnpahhg and recpriciling $ueh formation directly to the. undenying ag¢counting and
other records used to prepare the financial statemenits or fo the fihancial statements
themselives, and other additional procedures i aceordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the Unitexd States of America. Ih our opjnion, the. informatien is fairly stated, in all
material tespegts, in telstion to the finangiat sta{emenis as.a:whole.

Other Reporiing Beqairasd hy Goviéminent Auditing Staridards ‘ -

in accordance wWith' Goverriment Auditing Standards, we: figve also issued our erQl‘t dated
October 10, 2013, on our considetation of Commurtity Action Prorant of Belkriap-Metriack
Counties, Int.’s infermal ¢ontral over financial repotting ard on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of faws, regulations, contrasts, and grat agreements 2nd ather matfers. The-
putpose of that répoit is to describe the stope of our testing of internal control ever financial
reporting and ‘corpliance ‘aril the Tesults 'of that testing, and not fo provide an -opinion on
internal cantrel ever finaricial regorfivig or on compliarice. That report Is an integral part of an
audit perfanvied in asoordancs with Sovernient Audillng Standands in considering Comnunity
Action Progea of Belkbap-Mermimack Counfies, Ina.’s infemal contral over financial reparting.
and compliance.

Oclober 10, 2013
Concard, New Hampshire



STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEBRUARY 28, 2013 AND FEBRUARY 29, 2012

CURRENT ASSETS .
Gash
Agtounts receivable T
Prepaid expenses
Total currentassets

PRQPERJY

“Larid and bunldings
Equlpment

Less accumulated depreciation
 Property, net
OTHER ASSETS
Jnvestments .
ﬂue from related party -
: Total ofber assels
L TOTAL ASSETS.

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS.

CURRENT LIABILMMIEY
Comrent portien of notes payable
Accounts payable

Acciued expenses .
Rafuffdable advances

‘Tzstal-cunent-ﬁabniﬂes

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
. Notes payable, less: cument portion shiown above

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
‘Unrestricfed ,
Terporarily restricted

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Notes to Finaricial Statemenits

3

2013

$ 1,205,452

3,484,861
424,367

2012

$ 2027884
3,431,174
527,020,

5,114,680

5,9.86.'05_8

4,618,289

5,935,585

"4, 618,289
5,908,477

10,563,874
{5,928,189)

10,527,766
{5A92.531)

4,625,685

5,035,235

82,419
139 444

74,291
139441

221,860

89962295

$ 1120502

$ 128407,

2,022,052

1,170,625
1,070,024

P

$ 122,02

2,442,548
1,149,313
1,504,542

4,401,109

1,744,310

5,218,432

1871566

7,089,098

2,009,675
907,122

3,127,371
1,017,656

3,816,797

4,145,027

$ 9,962,225

$ 11,235,025




STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES.
~ FORTHE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2013 |
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29, 2012

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant awards
Ofher funds
Inkind
Uriited Way
Total reveriuss and othier support,
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS
Total
EXPENSES
Lompensation B
‘Payioll takes and banéfits:
Travgl
‘Qectipancy
Progmm ‘senvices
Ofhgrcosts

Hepreciation
In-iand

Total expenses:
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING DF YEAR
_ NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

Unrestricted

$: 19,545,688

3,708,706
1,066,723
150,918

Temporarily
Restricted

$ 2,333,637

2013
Total

6,042,343
1,068,723
150,918

2012
Tofal

$. 21,051,500
6,269,875
1143587

145,880

24,472,035

2444171

(2,444,171)

26,805,672

28,610,792

26,916,206

(110,534)

26,805,872

28,810,792

- 8,633,277
2 245454
318,080
1,191,059
11,374,654
1760,824
518,831
1,066,723

2,245,454
318,080
1,483,059
14,379,554
1,780,824,
§18,831
'1.068,723

92118.281
2,335424
334,076
1,144,249
11,588,545
2,549575
520,623
4,143,538

97,134,902

27,133,902

" @17598)

(140,534)

1,017,656

(328,230}

i 4'14‘5_‘021_‘

26,808,381
192,519
AL

3 2,909,675

§ 907,128

$ 3816707

54145027

See Notes to Financial Statements
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

EOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2013 AND FEBRUARY 29,2012

. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTWITIES
Change in net assets.
Adjustments ta recoricile' change in net.assets to
net cash:provided by operatmg sdctivities: .
Deprociation |
Donatad equipment :
Gaitt on sale of pmperty
(Increase) detreass’n'current assets:
Accounts receivable
Prepald expenses
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable .
Accrued expenses
Refuridable advances

. NETGASH {USED IN} PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM lNVEs'rme Ac'rwmss '

Additions to propesty” '

TnvesitEntin partnershlp

Pmceais ooy eala af pfapeﬂy
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIITIES. -

CASH "n,owsmom r—fchmc; AGTIVITIES

NET EASH USED IN mecma Ac'nvmu%
NET (DEG‘REASE) meREASE iN cAsH
CASH BALANCE, BESINNING OF YEAR

CASH BALANGCE, END OF YEAR |

SUPPLEMENTAL DISGLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash pald during the year for interest

See Notes to Financial Statements

5

2013

s (aeE20)

518831

26,08
B.242)

(536&7)
102‘653

2012
$  (192,519)

. 520623
' (19.068)

1,195,179
(88,703)

{112,608)
163,178

1218405

(dea,455)
(©:382)

_ ANV

RCERL)

19.860)

(322442)
2 027 864

{181,193)

637,395
1,380.469

___a@&z_

$ 116248

‘: %%2 i

$ 122005
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NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
EFOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2013

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature: of Organization

Community Action Program Belknap — Merrimack Gounties, Inc. (the Orgamzaﬁon) isa
New Hampshire nonprofit srganization that serves nutrmonal health, living and support
needs of the low income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These sérvices are provided with the finandial support of vasious faderal,

state,_ courity and local organizations.

Basis of Accounting
The finandial statements are prepared on the accrual basis:of accountmg

Basis of Presentation

Financial statement presentatuon follows the resommendations. of the FASB, in its.
Acoounhng Standard Codification No. 958 Financfal Staterents of Not-Far-Profit
Organizatioris. Under FASB ASC No. 958, the . Q:gamzaﬂm i cequlred 1o Teperi

,,,,,

. .nm‘ounaﬂon regarding its financial position and activities aceording:to fhree classes of

net assets: uprestrivted net assets, lemporarily restticted net assels, and. pamansently

_restricted et assefs. The: classes bf net assets are detemnined by the presencsi or

absence of donor restrictions. As of Februaty 28, 2013 theé Otganization had no

- peananently réstricted ret 4ssets and temporan[y testricted-nat agssts of §907,122.

. The financial statements include certain prioryEar summarized comparatlve mfermaﬂen

i tatal but not by net:asset eldss. Such information does niat inglude sufficient detdil to

‘constitute a presentation in conformity with generally agcepfed decounting prrciples.

Acoordingly; such jnforinatian should be read in conjunction with the Organization’s.

financial statements for the year ended February 29, 2012, from which the summarized

information was derived.

Inconie Taxes

" Gommunity -Action Program Belknap = Merrimack Gounfles; iné. is organized as @

nonprofit carporation ‘and is exempt from federal inconie taxes under Internal Revenue
Code Sectlon 501(c)(3) 'ﬁ\e Internal Revenue Service has determined them to be

C_ommunity- Actien Program of Belknap-Merrimack. Counties, Inc. files information
retums: in fhe United States and the State of New Hampshite. Gommunity Action

- Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc, is no langer subject to examinations by

tax aithorities for years before 2009.

~Aetounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounfing for Income Taxes,

established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measurirg, the
benefits: of tax return positions in financial statements. The Organization has analyzed
its tax position faken on its income tax retums for the years (2009 through 2012), for the

6



purposes of utnplementatlon, and has concluded that no additional provision for income
taxes is necessary if the Organization’s financial statements.

Property
Pmperty is recorded at cost, except for donated assets, whlch are recorded at fair valug

at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life Ir excess of one year
and -exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by cedain
funding sourees. Depreciation is compited on the straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related asséts as follows:

Buildings and mprovements 40 years.
Equipment-and office furniture . - Tyears.
Velilcles _ _ ~ byears
" " Gompiiter hardware and software 3years.

Use of Estimates

The preparation -of financial statefaents. in conformity with United States generally
: a‘c'ée‘ﬁted aceotlnting piinciples requires ' management fto make ‘estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financlal statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting périod. Actual results

couid dfffer from those estimates.

Castirand Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization c:onslders all liguid

investments- purchased with original mriaturities of three months, or less to ‘be cash

equ:vafeﬂts Commurity Action Progrant Belknap-Meriimaek Counties, Inc, maintains
its Gash in bank deposit accounts, whish at imes may exceed federally insured limits.

The Organizationy has niat expérienced any losses in sueh accouats and: b’él'm'es itls

ol exposed to anyslgmﬁcan nsxwrth respectiethess ameunts_ 3

Contributiots h ‘ '

All contribitions: are considered te be available for unrestricted use unless spegifieally
resticled by the donor. Ambunts received that are restricted by tha donor for future
periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restrated: or- pennanenﬂy'
restricted support, depending on the:nature of the. resfriction. Howsver, If 6 restriction is
fulfilled in the. same penod inwhich the contn'butlen is recewed the Orgamzatlon reports
the-support as unrestricted. .

in-Kind Donations / Nancash Transactions '

Donated facilities, services and supplies are reflected as feylenue and expense in the
acgompanying fi nancual statements, if the: eriteria for recognitfon #s met, This represents
the estimated fair value for the service, supphes and space that the @rgamzatron might
ineur under normal operating activities.

- Advertising '
The Organization expenses adverhsnng costs as lncurred.

REFUNDABLE ADVANCES
Grants -received in adVance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
reveriue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed or

7



incurred. Funds received in advarice of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$1,070,024 as of February 28, 2013. ,

RETIREMENT PLAN

The Qrgamzatxon hasa quallﬁed nontnhutury pension plan:vihich coverssubstantially all

employees. The cost of the plan.is charged fo programs administered by the

gr;{anézaﬁom The expense of the plan for the year ended, Februa:y 98, 2013 ‘was
368,026

LEASED FACILITIES

Facilities OCCUpled by the Orgamzatlon for its commumty servuce pragrams are leased
under véariols operating leases. The lease: teymg. range from month ta month to every
two years. For the year ended February 28, 2013, the annual lease expense for the
leased fadilities was $525,767.

The approximate Tut?ufa minimum lease payments.on the abové leases ares. as foliows:

Year Ended L
ebruary 28 | . Amount
2014 § 148,815
2015 B
AQBRUEB EARNED TIME

The Organization-has accrued &- ]iaﬁllﬁy JIor ’Eu(ure am'iuaj leave fime that its: employees
have earned and vested Ih the amount of $446,(387 at F’ebmary 28,2013.

LONG TERM EBT -

o Lang term debt Sonsisisd ef the fouowmg as.of February 28 2013‘ -

5 75% note payable to a finangial lnsﬁtutmn in murjthly
installments for principat and interest of $12,373 through July,
2023. The note Is secure g, by peretty of the Orgamzsaﬁon for .
- Lakes Region Family:Cerit $ 1,300,888
Note payable to a bank in :monthly mstallments for pﬁnclpal and.
interest of $4,494 through April, 2023. Intersst is stated at 1%
above the prime rate as published by the Wall Street Joumnal,
which restilted in an interest rate of 4.25% at February 28; 2013.
- The note. is secured by a first real estate mortgage and
— assignment-of rents-and- leases-of-property logated inCoricord,” —
New Hamipshire fotr Early Head Stait. . 447,321
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3% note payable to the Gity of Goncord for leasehold
improvements in monthly installments for principal and interest
of $747 through May, 2027. The ticte is §€cured by property of
the Organization for the agercy administrative building
renovations, 103,802

475% note payable to Rural Developnierit ln monthly

-insfaliments for ptificibal and Thterest of $148 per month through

September, 2031. The note is secured by properly of the -
Orgamzatlon for Franklin Communlty Services bmldmg 21715

Total ~ - 1,873,726
- Less ambunts due within one year . 120,407
Long term portion " - ' $ 1 ,744.31 g
The schedulgd maturifies. of lorig term debt as of February 28, 2013 wers as follows:
Year Ending L
February 28 Amount
2014 - ‘ $ 129407
2015 137,236
2016 o 145,851
207 154 380
2018, Dy
Thereafter
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment-consisted of the following as of F‘ebruary 28, 2013;
Land $ 168,676
Building and improvements. 4,449,613
Equipment , ‘ 5,935,585

$ 10,553,874

Deprediation expense forthe year ended February 28, 2013 was ',$5'18‘83.1 .

CONTINGENCIES '

The Organization receives. grant funding from vanous satirces. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required fo use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the govemning laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the: Organization
tnight be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
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T .

contingency because specific amaunts, if any, have not been determined or assessed -
as of February 28, 2013. Monitoring has not indicated any discrepancies.

CONCENTRATION OF RISK
For the year ended February 28, 2013, approximately $11,301,000 (42%) of the
Organization’s total revenue was received from the Department of Health and Human
Services, The fuluré scale and nature of the OI‘ganlzathl'l is:deperident upon gontinued
support from this department.

The Organizatiari. matntalns |ts cash accoeunts in several financial institutions in southém
New Hampshire. At Fehruary 28, 2013, the balances were inisured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up ta $250,000. Effective July 1, 2010, one of
the financial insfitutions agreed to. collateralize 4l deposits with them in excess. of the
FDIC limit. Another finanicial instifution agreed to collateralize the Organization's sweep
reputchiase aceount Up to 110% of the: account balance with US Government Agencies.
At February 28, 2013, there were:no depasits in excess of the uriinsured limits.

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
At ‘February 28, 2013, temporarily testricted net assefs consisted of the: following
unexpended _purpose restricted donations:

Res u:ted Purpose

Ageney Fugl Assistance Program $ 31,029
Nufritiah and Elder Qervices | 604,678
Cadng Fund _ 14,709
Gommon Pantry 7,135
Software Prografi-FAP/EAP 781
Senivr Ceriter 122,102
Agency Head Start 106,508
Agency Family Plannirg and Prenats] Prograri 5,043
NH Food Pantry Coglition 863
Ageney Senior Companion Program 5,404
NH Rotary Foad Challenge .. 5070

907,122

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
The Statement of Activities discloses éxpenses by natural classification. The
classifieation of expenses by function is summarized below:

Program  Management Total .
Salaries and wages $ 8 206 340 '$ 426937 § 8633277
---Benefits-and-payroll taxes - "27126,957 T 1184987 2,245,454
Travel 315,110 2,976 318,080
Ogccupancy ’ 1,092,178 98,881 1,191,059
Program services 11,379,654 11,379,654

10



12-

13.

14.

.DevelomnentS’erviceMm

Other costs: . - :
20,844 48,134

Accounting fees

Legal fees 1,452 10,716
Supplies 28746 | 212,726
Postagé and shipping 99 T 60569

Eqmpment rental anﬁ o o
- rrigiritenance 694 18,061
Printing’ andbudhcaﬁons o ;N 543

" Cariférences, eenvenﬁonsand e
me‘éﬁngs e 13888, kT §78
- [Rtepast | U Tt 11B.248
Insurance’ - 82242 dib7es
Membership fees . 1426 0 20482
“Utility and malr iénanoe N CBG739 0 B2.607
Other 2 - 21}697 ‘933504
Depreciation 6,-5&1 . 518,831
‘Inkind - 1,,(}_6 123

: RELATED PARTY TRANSACT IGNS

Community Action Rrogram Belknap — Merrimack Countfes, lnc i§ related to the
foﬂoWing corporaﬂqn as a resu[t of mmmon managemer;t R

CAPBMC Development cmperaﬁ‘un g A kear Es*tate De\lélopme‘nt

_h.,v'_\’ WoNe ot VTR R

Communify Action Progrant Belknap — Mern‘mack Gourfffes. lné hias & deveropment
services agreerient with Sandy Ledge Limgted Pattpership whese pumese is to-acquire,
rehabilifate and: opditats s qualited “lowineotie= apatthert ity -as defined by
Intefnal Revenue Code Section 42., CAPBMC Develbpment ‘Corporation js the general
pariner in Sandy Ledge: Limited ‘Pmmé?s’ﬁ! THE gient éaﬁd forpayment of
semvices in the amount of $194,000." “Thé ameuht due frém’ Sandy Ledge Limited
Paririership at February 28, 2013 totaled $139,441.

RECLASS!F!CATIO_N _
Certaitr amounts Bnd desounts frobr ‘the prior year finaroial atenients have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the - presentation of the: current year

FAIRVALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTI RUMENT_S , -

Comrmunity Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is a limited ligbility
company member of Community Provider Network of Central NH LLC. The investinent
total at February 28,2013 was $35, OOO ,

11



The Organization has also invested money relating to its Fix-it program in certain mutual
funds. The fair market value of the mutual funds totaled $47,419 at February 28, 2013

ASC Topic No..820-10, Finandial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value
which focuses on an exit-price rather thian an entry price, establishes a framework
in generally accepted accountmg principles for measuring fair value - which
emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, nof an entity-specific
measurement, and reguites expanded disclosures about fait value measuremnents:
In accordance with FASB ASC 820, the Ongaanatlon may use va]uatlon techniqués

_consistent with market, Incoine. and- cost approaches to measure fair value. As a
basis for cOUSidéﬁhg niarket parbmpant assumptions in fair value measurements,

FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used
in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the highiest - priority 1o Level 1
measurerents and the lowest prierity to Leével 3 measurements.. The three levels of
the fair value hierarchy under FASE ASC 820 are described as follows:

J_evel 1 - Inputs o the valuation methodalogy are quoted prices availablg in active
markets for identical investiments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - lnputs to-the valuation methodology are other than guoted miarket prices
in active markets, which are..either directly or indirectly obséwvable as of the
reporting date, anid fair value can be detémpined thrqugh the use-of models:or other
valuation m&xcdc))qg:es. .

Level 3 ~Inputs to ﬂae valuation methadnlogy sire uriobsérvable inputs i sntuatnons
where therg Is little: or rio- matket activity fot the asset of l}abilltv and the reparting
enhfy make§ eshmates and assumptons related to the pncing of the asset or

sssss

Al February 28,2018, the {Drgamzahon s lnve,stments were classified s Level 1 and- 3 and
were based on fair value.

FalrValue Measuretnents using Significant Observable Inputs (Level 1)

‘Beginning balance — mutual funds (at fair value) § 39299

. Total gains of (Iosses) reaﬁzed {utirealized 4,815
Purchades 3313

Ending Balance ~ mutual funds 17,419

Fair'Value Measurements usitid Significant Unobservable inputs (Level 3

Beginning balance (atfairvalue) $ 35000
Total gains or (losses) - realized/unrealized . _ R
 Ending Balance 35000

The carrying amount of cash, cufrent assets, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the shoit maturity of those instruments.

12



15,

16.

FISGAL AGENT

for the follownng commumty orgamzatlons Frankhn Commumty Sennces Bunldmg
(Frankliin), the Common Pantry {Laconia), the Caring Fund (Meredith), the. NH Food
Pantry Coulitlon, ard the NH Rotary Food Challenge. The Agency provides the
management and oversight of the revenues recelved (donations) and the expenses
(Utilities, food and emergency services).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS.

Siihsequent events ‘are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date,
but before financial stalements are available to be issued. Recognized subsequent
events are evernts ortransactions that provide additional evidence abaut conditions. that
existed at the halance sheet date, including the estimates inherent in the process of
preparing financial statements. Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that
provide evidence about canditions that did not-exist at the balance sheet date, but arose
after that date. Management has &valuated subsequent events through October 10,
2013, the date the finandial statements were -available to be issued.

13



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

{See Indepsndent Auditors’ Report)



SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR'THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 9013

FEDERAL GRANTOR/
PROGRAM TITLE

Thmugh State of New Hampshire.
Weatherization-HRRP
‘Fuel Assistance
Fuel Asslstance-SEAS.
Titlg il Part C
Cotnmunity Services Block Grant
Community Services Block Grant Discrefionary.
Title XX - Block Grant
Family Planning:
Family Planning
Famlly Planning
Public Health Network ~(ID-PICS)
Publie Heajth Neétwark -(ID-PICS)
Public Health Netwiork - (ID-PICS)
Title 11 Part B Rural Transportation
TANF - Hame isiting:
Horne Visiting New Hampshire
Prenatal
Merrimack County Service Link Program
Merrimatk County Service Link Prograim
Mertimack County Service Lirk Program
Merrimack Courty Servios Link Prograni
Mertimack Courtty Service Link Prograrm
Elder Servites/NSIP

Through Southern New iampshire Services
Workplace Success

Through Lakes Reglon Partnership for Public Health
MIPPA
MIiPPA
MiPPA

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRIGULTURE
Thiough Stite of New Hampshire
wie

CSFP

Senior Farmers Market.
Surplus Food-TEFAP/Admin
Surplus Food-TEFAP
CACF Head StattUSDA
Summer 'Fbo&+USDA.

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL SERVICES
Senior Corripanjon-

14

CFDA

NUMBER

'93.600

'93.568
93,668
93.044
93.045
§3.560
83.670
83,667
93297

" 93558

93.940
93.060

53.268

\930“‘;‘

93 558
93.605

9778
Q3.052
93 667’
‘BI779
93.053

‘B3.658

93.518
Q3779
93.791

10.857
10.565
10.576
10.568
10.569
10.558
10.559

94.016

RASS
THROUGH
GRANTOR
NUMBER. EXPENDITURES
NA - 3 3,703.275
B2,023
641004 4,409,813
mmm . 6,729
410338 902, 541
610155 412,049
. 24,240
410338 558,596
6102487 121,249
610237 38,619
610237 4710
o 39,812
, 3,927
o 11484
410338 " 258,053
" NA . 2,281
. : 217
620243 - 26,167
gﬁ - 91,317
[/ 8,231
" NA 7,545
N/A. 19,333
‘NIA 280,809
4,875
1,626
5725
11,300,861
611080 823,408
- 611080 1,032,566
‘93,364
N/A 105,577
N/A 1,072,985
N/A 195,295
136,863
3,460,058
NIA 398,054




US DERPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTAT!ON
Through, State of New Hamp‘shite

Congord Aréa Translt o 20.509 481,406
Concord Area Transit-New Freedom 20521 2,548
Concord Area Transi-JARG 20:518. 67,074
‘Winnipesqukee Transit System 20.509 68022 63,324
ARBAWiInpipesaukes Transit System 20.509 7,882
ARRA-Concard Area Transit 20.509 8,670
ARRA-Cencord Area Trahsit-JARC - . 20.516 7,094
5308 Capital Advatics 20500 1,491
Through.County of Memimack.

Volunteer Driver Progtam 20.513 . 32278

_ . - 671,765

s BEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Through State of New Hamipshire

ARRA-THerdpetitic Classroofi 16.801 21,102

US DEPARTMENT DF HOUSING AND URBRN DEVELOPMENT
Throygh New Hampshire Huusiug Finanes Authonity

Statéwide Lead Abatement Program 14.900 737,642
Through State of New.Hampshire
ESG - New Start/Oritreach Program 14.235 NIA 162,05+
Homeless Prevention 14.235 N/A 13,072
ARRA:Herigless Proventioh & Rapid Re-housing 14,257 . 83,864,
Suppoms’(é Housfng Semvices 14.235 A 66,429
Thmugh sme ofNaw Bamrshire - : o
N 81042 551886 . J21,870
i 81042 315,054
MH Pa:kmﬂwmnon - B4R Ng 261,052
US DEPARTMENT osmg@g ,
Through State bf New Hampshire : o
Senlor Community Service Employment 17.236 610063 540,614
Through Southern New Hampshire Services 4
WIA-Adulf Program - 17:258 NA - 110,544
WIA-Dislocated Wod(érProgram 17.260 N/A _ 113,650
Through State.of New Haimpshire: _
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 NA 8,281
Through United Way- _ v _
Emergency Food and Shélter Program : 97.024 NA . 1,362
9,643
TOTAL AWARDS EXPENDED: N $ 18387429
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NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The schedule of Expend‘rtures of Federal Awards |ncludes federal grantachwty of COmmum'ty Actlon Program

this schedute is presented in aooordance wrth the reqmre‘ments of OMB Cm:ufar A-133 "Audsfs of States
Local Governments and Ngn—Pmﬁt ngamzation;,“ Because the schediile présents. qn!ya salgcted pmilon

y A ction Prograny of Belknap-Merimack Gaunties, fre., 1t is rict intended to-and
I positiorn, chandd ifi net asséts, or cash flows of Community Action Program. of

Belknap—Mémmack cwnﬁdﬁ; lm
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL QVER FINANCIAL.
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND GTHER-MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors . ,
Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

We haye audited, in accordarice with the audmng standards generally accepfed in the United States
of America. and the standards applicable: to financial audits contained in Gavermnment Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the financial statements of
Community Action Program of Belknap-Merimack Countiés, Inc. (New Hamipshire nofiprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 28, 2013, and the

related statements of actlvmes and changes |n rlet assets and cash ﬂows for the year then ended :

10, 2013.

lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting

In: planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community Action
Program of Belknap-Mefrimack Gounties, Inc.’s intermal -eontrol over financial reporting (intemal
controf) to deterinitie fhe audit procedures that are appropriate in the circtimstances for the purpose
of eXpressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the putpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Commuriity Adtion Program of Belknap-Merimack Caunties, Inc.'s
intemal control, Accordirigly, we do. riot express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Orgamzahon $
internal .control.

A deficiency in intémal control exists when the design or operation of & control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of perfoiming their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and eorrect, misstatenvients. on & timgly basis, A malerial weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficienties, in inteinal control, such that there is a reasanable possibility that a
material misstaterment of the. entity’s financial statements will nat be: prevented, or détected -and
eorrected on a timely basis. A significant deficienicy is a deficiency, or a ¢ombination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Qur consideration of internal :control was for the limited purpose described in the fitst paragraph of
this 'section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemnal controf that might be material
weaknesses or sngnlf icant deficiencies. Given these: limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficienicigs in internal control that we consider fo be material weaknesses. However, matérial
weaknesses iay exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program of Belknap-
- Metiimack Counties,{nc:'s financial statements-are-free-from-material-misstatement, we performed

tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulatioris, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial.
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statement amounts. However, prov:dmg an opinion:-on eompiliance with those provisjons was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not expréss sich an aplmon The resuits of our tests
disclased no hstancss of nopgommpliance or other matters. that are reqmred to be reported under
Govemment Auditing Standards :

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scepe of our testmg of internal control and
,,,,, compliance and the resulfs of that testing, and not ta provide an opinian anthe effectiveness of fhe
Orgamzatlons internal confrol or bn camplianes. - This. veporf i an integral part of an audit performisd
in accordance with Government Audifing Standards in considsiing the Organization's intemal eontrol
and compllanOE‘ Accordingly, this commumcatlon is not suitahls for any ather purpose.

October 10( 2018 -
Goncord, New Hampshlre
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'INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANGE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRGULAR A-133

To the Board of Directors
Community Action Program of Belknap-Mernmack Csun’ues, Inc '
Goncord;-New Harmpshire . .

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program '

We have audited Coramunity Action Program of BelkﬂéP'Memmack Countles Inc.'s compliance with
the types of compllanee reguirerients describedin the-OMB Cirstilar A-133 Compliance Supplement
fhiat could have a direct and-material effect oh- egeh of Cemmunity Action Program of Belknap-
Mentimack Counties, Inc.’s major federdl progrars for the year. gnded February 28, 2013. Community
Actlon Program of Belknap-Mernmack Ccuntles, Inc 'S major fedeml programs are ldentlf ed m the

Management’s Responsrblhty

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable: to its federal programs.

Atiditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to exjiréss an opln(on on conpliance for each of Cemmunity Action Program of
Belknap-Merimack Countles, Inc,’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of
compliance fequirements referred to above. We condueted our audit of compliance in acsordance
with auditing standards generally acgépted in the United States of America; the: standards applicable
to financlal audits: contained in Government Auditing Standards, issted by the Comptroller General of
. the Unifed States; and OMB Ciroular A-133, Autits of States, Loval Govemments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards ahd OMB Cirgular A-133 require that we plan and pefform the audit
1o obtdin reasonable assurance about whether nencompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material &ffect. on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes exzrining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action
Program of Belkhap-Merrimack Counties, Inc’s compliance with those requirements and perforttiing
stich other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for ouf opinion on compliance for each majar
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a Jegal determination of Community Action
Program of Belknap-Mertimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance.

Opinion o Each Major Federal Program

In our epinion, Community Action Program of Belknap—Memmack Counties, Inc, complied, in ll
material respects, with the types: of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended February 28, 2013.

19



Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over complianice with the types of compliance
requirements referred to abave. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered
Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s ititernal control over sompliance
with the typeés of requirements that could have a direct and material éffect o esich major federal
pragram to. determine the. audmng procedures that are appropnate i the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinjon on compliange for each major federal program and 1o test and
report .on internal control -aver comphance in actardance with OMB Circular A-133, but ot for the
purpese of expressing an @pinion: on the effectiveness of internal eontrol over compliarice.
Accordinigly, we: d6 fiot express an oplhion or the effestiveness ¢f Community Act|on ngram of
Belknap-Merimack Countiss, Ihc’s internal contro] over gompliance,

A deficiency in intemnal gontrol over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliancs does nof aliow, mianagement ar employees, in the normal eourse of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with & type of compliance
reguirément of & federal program ofi @ timely basis. A material weakneass iri ifiternal conlrol over
cormipliance is a defi iciency, of combination of deficiencies, in internal contral over compliance, such
that there is a reasoriable possihility that material ‘noncompliance with a type of comphance
requirement of a federal program will net he prevented, or detected and corrected, on a tlmely basis.
A significant deficiency in intemal control over compliance is- a deficiency, or a eombination of
defigiencies, in intemal contiol over ¢omplignce. with a- type of sompliance requirement of a federal
ptogram that is less severe than & foaterial weakness in internal cotifrol over comphanée yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our considarafion of internal Gontre! over compliance: was far the limited purpase desaribed in the first
parsgraph of this section and was not designed 16 identify all deficlencies. in internal antral over
compliance that might be rmaterial weaknesses or significant defitlenciss. We did not identify any
deficiencies in intemal cantrol over cormipliance that we corisider ta big: matenal Weaknessae However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

- The purpose of this repart on intemal contral over compliance is solely 1o descnbﬂ the scope of our
testing of internal control 6ver complianee and the: results of thait testing based on the requirements of
DOMB Cireular A-133. Accordirigly, this report is net suitable for.any eother putpase.

October 10,2013
Concord, New Hampshire

20



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2013

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

1. The aoditors' repart expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of

2.

8.

“There were ho audit ﬁh‘di‘r;g

Communtty Action Program of Belknap-Meirimack Sounties; Inc.

No material weaknesses or significant deficlencies reldting to the audit of the financial
statements are feported In-the Independent Auditors’ Report on Intemal Control Qver Finaricial
Reporting and on Compliance-and ether Matters Based on an Audil of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No instarices of rioncompliance matevial to the financial statements of Gommurity Action
Prograta of Balknap-Metiimack Counties, itic., which would be required to bie: reporied in
acoerdance with Govemment Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

No significant defigiericies in- iﬁ:tfemalz contral over major federal award programs during the
audit are reported in the Jndependent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and ©n internal Control Qver Compliance Required by OMB Cirogflar A-133.

The-auditats’ reporton complignse for the major federal award programs for Gommiunity Action
Pragram of Belknap-Merimatk: Counties, Iric. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
programe; _ L ~

There wer dings which the auditor would be required 19 report under Section
510(a) of OMB Clrcular A-183. -~ : :

7. The progranas testod as migfor proytants incitde:

8.
9.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

93.800 Head Start

93.045 Title il Part ©

93044 Title Nl PartB ~ A _

98.053 Elder Servives/Nutrition Service Incentive Program
93569 Community Services Block Grant - -~ - -
93,667 Title XX Block Grant

14.000 Statewide Lead Abatement Program

14.235 Supportive Housing Setvices

81.042 Weatherization '

81.042 ARRA Weatherization

17,235 Senior Gommunity Sefvice Employment

17.258 WIA — Adult Program

17.260 WIA — Dislocated Worker Program

The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was. $300,000.

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to be a low-

risk auditee,

None
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FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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ITIES, INC,

IMACH _
~ SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE LOW INCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM - CFDA 93.568
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2013

Grant Period  Grant Period |
10/1M2-9/30/12  1011/12:9/30/13 Total

Revenues _ A ]
Division of Huiman Resources $ 1087863 § 3311950 § 4,409,813
Other 7822 . 7822

$ 1105685 $ 3311950 $ 4417835

Expenditures
Persannel $ 214574 ¢ 106,025 $ 320599
Fringe benefits - 29,868 17,949 47,817
Travel 3,403 2,008 5,502
Occupancy © 28,818 24,972 53,790
Direct program costs: 794,872 3,132,651 3,927,523
. Dther costs 34,150 28,254 62404

e

1105685 § 3811950  § 4417635
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SCHEDUYLE OF REVENUES AND EXFENDITURES
FOR THE SENIOR COMPANION PROGRAM - €FDA 94.016
FOR THE YEAR ERDED FEBRUARY 28, 2013

GrantPeriod . GrantPeriod.
TAH1 - 630M2 71142 - 6I30/13 Total

Reveriues _ , 5 o
Corparation for Natianat Services $ 126509 § 271,545 § 398054

Expenditures. o »
Personnel $ 85,160 $ 148,129 $ . 233289
Fringe benefits - 201186 20,186
Travel : 38,265 70,987 109,252
Other costs ___ 3605 32,243 35848

$ 127030 § 271545 § 398575
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" SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THEHEAD START PROGRAM - CFDA 93,600
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2013

Grant Period Grant Period )
141124213112 111131213113 Total

Revehiies . .
U,S. Department of Health and Himan Services  § 3,036,096 $ 667,179 $ 3,703,275
In-Kind 804,274 229,596 1,033,870

$ 3840370 § BI6T775  $_4.797.145

Expenditures
‘Personnel : : $ 1980245. $ 459,083 $ 2,440,228
Fringe benefits 258,175 56,771 314,946
Travel 33,052 7.997 41,049
in-Kind 804,274 229,596 1,033,870
Other costs. 764,624 142,428 907,052

§ 3840370 § 896775 § 4,737,145
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE NUTRITION AND: ELDER SERVIGES RROGRAM -
CFDA 93.045, 93.667 and 93.053
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28,2013

Revenues

US$ Departitient of Health and. Human Services:

Title il Part C
NH Department of Health and Human-Services
Qther : ' ‘

Expenditures
Personnel
Fringe benefits
Qtsupancy
Travel
Other costs

26

-Grant Period
7M1 - 6130/12 71112 6130/43

Grant Period

151,892
281,104
116,706
206,406

406,704
621,437
106,238
417,423

Jotal

658,596
902,541
623,829

756,108

1,551,802

351,629
32,493
54,196
43,720

. 260,020

742,874
78,811
107,062
86,507
513,086

2,307,910

1,094,503
111,304
164,258
130,227
773106

742,058

$

1,528,340

2,270,398




SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE ELEGTRIG ASSISTANCE PROGRANM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY. 28, 2013

Grarit Period Grant Period _
10AA1-0/30/12  10/112-913013  Total

Revenues $ _88BO7Z § 987837 $ 1875909

Expenditures
Personnel $ 156,951 3 142,976 $ 269,927
Fringe benefits 20,247 - 21,385 §0,632
Travel ' 1,669 843 2,512
Octupancy 16,846 4,492 20,338
Cthier costs 584,359 __ 848,141 1,532,500

$__ 888072 §. 987837 § 1875909
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - EY PROGRAM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2013

Tomado Relief Funid (018)

Twiri River Community Corp {052 & 053)
Cottage Holel (063 & 064) |

Sandy Ledge (092 & 093y

Ozanai (103 & 104)

Senlor Center Program (138)

Franklin Intergeneratianal (183-& 184)

Senior Compariion Program - Non-Federal (222 & 223)
Senior Companion Program - State (232 & 233)
Franklin Community Services (292 & 293)
Head Start - Childcars (352 & 353)

Betknap County - WXN Program (374)

Lakés Region Family Center (382 & 383)

REJP (402) _

Purchase Rehabilitationi:Project (426)

NH Motular Ratnp (431 & 432)

National Grid Program: (472)

New Hampshire Housing Guarante& Program (492 & 493)

Core.Program (502 & 503)

NH Rotsiry (540)

Comman: Pantry (552 8-553)
Softvrare Program - FAP/EAP (583)
Oral Health WIC (600)

28

Revenues

8,281
27,326

24,530

10,597
23,801
169,798
63,888
49,035
33,480

54,420
1,056,899

. 5415
158,800

213,824

76,599
174,532
188,308
550,420

2
1,227

4,463

Expenses:
8,261
44,185
12,141
19,509
23,728
16,731
45%912
48,544
34,152
23,633
1,001,218
696
158,300
162,587
213824
67,982
189,571
198,732
666,709
54
6,008



SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BY PROGRAM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2013

Bedside Pilot Program {632)
Epsom Elderly Housing (642 & 643)
Belmant Housing (852 & 653)
Alton Housing (662 & 663)
Kearsarge Housing (672 & 673)
Riverside. Housing (682 & 683)
Pembroke Housing (707 & 70¢
onﬁm;el_v,es.s Revolving Loan (728)
Area Centers (762 &763)

Hb‘riné Ac‘:ces's Program ( 7 74)

THE FIXIT -Program (832 & 833)
Loan Guarantee Program (847)
MC Loan Guarantae Program {848)
The :Caﬁrig Fund (862 & 863)
Agency WIG & CSF (883)
‘Newbury Elderly Housing (884)
Housing Future (892)

Agenty Accbunt (911 & 980):
Agenicy Account FAP (922)

Agency Account SCP (931 & 932)
H/S Ageney (942 & 943)

Agency FP/PN (963)

Saving. Heat & Reducing Energy (970)

Agency Horseshoe-Pond Place (993 & 994)

29

Revenues

1,674
62,694
67,442
52,757
66,864
76,569
54,127
15,457

265,554

2,981
14,854
82,820

2,666

6,976

20,000

89,800
75,632
18,522
{49,635)
144
169,798
28,679

Expenses

1,674
77,552
69442
52,240
66,864
76,569

. 54,127

15,457
344,07
2,961
11,887
82,620
2,666
4284
225
43,366
20,000

. 934,809
.- 19&389 .

10,379
{16,111}
55
169,992
28,679



018
045

154

163
194
223
263
343
372
483
493
573
593
613
623
713
728
729
733
746
763
803
833
847
854
a04.

SCHEDULE OF REFUNDABLE ADVANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2013

FUND NAME

Tomado Relief Fund

Supportive Housing Services

Merrimack ‘County Service Link

Elder Services Program

Electric Assistance Program

Senior Companion Program - Non-Federal
Rural Transportation Service

Head Start - USDA

Greater Lakes Child Advocacy

Public Health Network

NH Housing Guarantée Program

Fuel Assistance Program

Homeless Prevention

WwIC

Commodity Supplemental Food Supply
Concord Area Transit -

Homeless Revolyirig Loan Fund-Belknap Cotunty

Homeless Revolving Loan Fund-Mefrimack County

‘Winnipesaukee Transit System
CommunlityCrisis Fund

Area Centér Program

Shelter Program

Fixit Program

Loah Guarantee Program

New Start Program

Community Services Block Grant

30

HHS PROGRAM CFDA#

93.778
93.045,93.667 (amount is iot federal)

93.044

93.069,93.283,93.268

93.568

93.569

TOTAL

AMOUNT

$ 19,161
3,651
3,000
8,647

67,657
667
42,508
10,531
5,000
6,421

104,833

356,905

186,975

926
1,199
61,288
46,527
21
3,578
1,476
168
49,918
30
73,828




Community cAction, Program g ==
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PARTNERSHIP

Belknap—Merrimack Counties, Inc. ===

P.O. Box 1016 ¢ 2 Industrial Park Drive ¢ Concord, NH 03302-1016
Phone (603) 225-3295 ¢ Toll Free (800) 856-5525 ¢ Fax (603) 228-1898 ¢ Web www.bm-cap.org

Effective 12/2/13

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Term Expires

Sara A. Lewko, President Indefinite
Charles Russell, Esq., Vice-President 3/2014
Dennis Martino, Secretary-Clerk Indefinite
Kathy Goode, Treasurer Indefinite
Heather Brown 1/2015
Nicolette Clark 1/2016
Susan Koerber 1/2016
Bill Johnson Indefinite
Theresa Cromwell 3/2014
Cindy Cantelo 1/2015
Andrea MacEachern 1/2016
Public Sector — Indefinite
Elected Sector — 3-year term
Private Sector — 3-year term
ALTON CONCORD FRANKLIN LACONIA OSSIPEE SUNCOOK
Senlor Center—..__..o...... 8737102 Area Canter, 2256880 Arca Cemter......ooo e 9I4-J444 Area Centef o ... 524-5512 Family Panning...............530-7552 Area Center.... A35-7024
Prospect View Housing .....875-3111 Head Start ..o 2248492 Hoad Start ... 0342181 Head Start ... . 5785334 Prenstal ... .. 539-7552 Senlor Center.... .. . 485.4254
Sentor c-ErE..I:T.?_NIJﬂu1 W‘mﬁ——m i Housi 9345340 m’h""““"‘ ~nS2A-4S3  yiagy t Pembroke Farms Senior Canter...........—.. 5778291
Heritage Terr. Housing ......267-3801 Concord Pond Ph‘::mu"g KEARSARGE VALLEY Wi "—m_'mmmu‘: [, - T T S— . 485-1842
_ BRADFORD e o Ty g AmaCoater asa-2207 B2t __ PITTSFIELD
S o BT cosom Moo s g o3¢ MEREDITH T e
Mcadow Brook Housing 7368250 Senior Center 2795631 T Hesd Start— ... 4358611



EDUCATION

EMPLOYMENT

enr
Resume-R. Littlefield

RALPH LITTLEFIELD

High School — Winnacunnet High School, Graduated June 1966
College — Keene State College, Keene, NH, Graduated May 1971
Degree — Bachelor of Education

January 1980 — Present
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Executive Director

Responsible for the general administration of the agency which is
comprised of 85 major programs and has an annual budget in
excess of $37 million dollars and a staff of 410 employees.

June 1978 — January 1980 .
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, New Hampshire
Deputy Director

1976 — June 1978
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, New Hampshire
Head Start Director

1974 - 1975

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, New Hampshire

Program Coordinator-Food Stamp Program, Green Thumb Project,
Nutrition West

1974 — Head Counselor, Summer Neighborhood Youth Corps

1972 — Assistant Head Start Director, Cheshire County Head Start
Claremont, New Hampshire

June 1971 — General Services Director



KATHRYN R. LAVIGNE

WORK EXPERIENCE

July 1993-Present

November 1992-
June 1993

January 1989-
November 1992

October 1979-
September 1988

June 1986-
September 1988

August 1984-
September 1988

October 1979-
August 1984

EDUCATION
1982-1989

1963-1967

REFERENCES

CHIEF ACCOUNTANT
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
P.0O. Box 1016, Concord, New Hampshire 03302-1016

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT

John Killion & Co., Concord, New Hampshire

Responsible for compilations and reviews of commercial accounts, preparation of
financial statements and tax returns. Auditing at junior level for nonprofit
organizations. Preparation of weekly payrolls, quarterly payroll tax returns and
year-end W-2’s for service bureau accounts. Installation of accounting software.
Set-up of clients chart of accounts and trial balance. Software used: Real World,
Word Perfect, Cougar Mountain, Accountants Trial Balance, Fixed Assets
Management and Tax Machine.

OFFICE MANAGER |

Rudolph Electrical Co., Inc., Concord, New Hampshire

Supervise staff of three. Responsible for implementing computerized accounting
system. Handle all aspects of accounting, i.e. accounts receivable, accounts
payable, payroll, general ledger and job cost. Responsible for preparation of weekly
payroll, monthly financial statements and quarterly payroll tax returns. Collect
overdue accounts.

Rivco, Penacook, New Hampshire

ACCOUNTING MANAGER

Supervise staff of seven. Responsible for hiring, assigning, appraising performance
and directing department personnel, including recommending compensation
changes and promotions. Participant in audit preparation. Administrator of profit
sharing plan and trip promotion program.

CREDIT MANAGER

Monitor all accounts and collect overdue accounts. Determine credit rating of
prospective customers. Open accounts. Consult with lawyers, salesmen and sales
manager. Represent company in court. Handle customer correspondence and
telephone calls. Train and supervise credit personnel.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE CLERK
Handle all aspects of accounts receivable and billing. Reconcile accounts. Prepare
monthly sales reports and aged trial balance by customer and by salesmen.

Franklin Pierce College, Concord, New Hampshire
Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting and Business Management
May 1989, Graduated Magna Cum Laude

Franklin High School, Franklin, New Hampshire
Business-Secretarial, Graduated with high honors

Available upon request.



MARY A. THOMAS

OBJECTIVE: I desire a job where I can use the skills and knowledge that I have acquired.

EXPERIENCE:
2010 — Present Program Assistant, Homeless and Family Housing
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Provide clerical support and assist with the oversight of the agency’s Security Deposit Guarantee
Program, Homeless Housing Revolving Loan Fund, Emergency Assistance Program and Homeless
Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program.

2008-2010 Receptionist/Housing Intake Referral Specialist

The Way Home, Manchester, NH  (603) 627-3491

Responsible for the front desk; wrote client intakes, answered phones, scheduled appointments, and
referred clients to available services in the area. Also assisted with the security deposit loan, HPRP and
transitional housing programs.

2007 Coordinator
Lifetouch Photography, Manchester, NH (603) 606-4412
Coordinated the students and photographers on school picture day.

2005-2007 Independent Insurance Agent

2001-2005 Telephone Service Representative

Abacus Communications, Manchester, NH (603) 668-2820

Placed catalog orders, job applications, set appointments, performed customer service for some
companies while working with a number of computer programs and systems.

1999-2001 Front Desk Clerk

Days Inn, Concord, NH (603) 224-2511

Checked customers in and out of rooms, took reservations, negotiated prices, ran the breakfast, handled
complaints and answered phones.

2000-2001  Substitute Library Aide

Weare Public Library, Weare, NH (603) 529-2044

Checked materials in and out, helped patrons find information sources, shelved materials, and
occasionally ran the story hour.

1989-1999 Field Representative

U.S. Bureau of the Census, Boston, MA

Collected data by interviewing occupants at given addresses, planned workload and travel routes and
researched county records while working independently from home.

EDUCATION:
High School Diploma-1971, George Washington High School, Charleston, WV
Machine Shop certificate 1976, Utah Vo-Tech, Salt Lake City, Utah



Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Department of Health and Human Services

NH Housing Security Guarantee Program

Contract Amendment #1
SFY 2014 & SFY 2015

Key Personnel

Amount Paid
Name Job Title Salary % Paid from from this
this Contract Contract
Ralph Littlefield Executive Director $ 120,651 0% $ 0.00
Kathy Lavigne Chief Accountant $ 61,464 0% $ 0.00
Mary Thomas Program A551stan.t, $ 24,804 0% $ 0.00
Homeless & Family
Housing




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-9196 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196
FAX: 603-271-5139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Mary Ann Cooney
Associate Commissioner

October 28, 2013

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan G&C Appr Oved
and the Honorable Council o

State House :

Concord, New Hampshire 03301 Date \ \,_\ aO‘ 1

REQUESTED ACTION @M # ‘LQ

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services
to enter into a retroactive Agreement with Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc., 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord NH 03302, vendor code 177203-B001 to provide State Grant In-
Aid Program, Homeless Housing and Access Loan Fund Programi" f;[geffs‘iﬁg/éecurity Guarantee
Program and Homeless Outreach Intervention Program services to homeless individuals, in an amount
not to exceed $546,928. This amount represents an award effective retroactive to July 1, 2013 upon
Governor and Council approval, through June 30, 2015.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account in State Fiscal Years 2014 and
2015 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets with the
authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and amend the related terms of the contract
without further approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-42-423010-7925 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOMELESS HOUSING ACCESS FUND

Fiscal Year Appropriation Class/Object Class Title
2014 05-95-42-423010-7925 102-500731 Contracts for program services  $8,375.00
2015 05-95-42-423010-7925 102-500731 Contracts for program services  $8,375.00

Total $16,750.00

~> 05-95-42-423010-7928 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, EMERGENCY SHELTERS

Fiscal Year Appropriation Class/Object Class Title
2014 05-95-42-423010-7928 102-500731 Contracts for program services $221,984.00
2015 05-95-42-423010-7928 102-500731 Contracts for program services  $221,984.00

Total $443,968.00

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

Fiscal Year Appropriation Class/Object Class Title
2014 05-95-42-423010-7927 102-500731 Contracts for program services  $86,210.00



Her Excellency, Governor Ma.garet Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
Page 2

EXPLANATION
This request is retroactive because the Department efforts to consolidate contracts to reduce
administrative burden for the contractors as well as reduce the number of submissions to Governor
and Councii has resuited in certain deiays in the department completing the contract package.

State Grant-in-Aid

The Vendor will utilize State of New Hampshire Emergency Shelter Program Grant-In-Aid in
combination with matching funds pursuant to these Agreements for Essential Services, such as
assistance in finding permanent housing, employment counseling, substance abuse counseling,
assistance in accessing other community services, and staff salanes and benefits; and
Prevention/Intervention Services, such as payment of utilities arrearage with discounted notice, back
rent with eviction .notice, or mortgage arrearage with foreclosure notice Such activities help negate
instances where households are threatened by immediate homelessness.

A Request for Proposal for-the State Grant-in-Aid funds was issued at the annual NH Homeless
Provider and Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The Request for
Proposal was also posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’ website. Criteria for
selection included: proposal includes all elements and is assembled as required; program design and
need for project; performance measures and identified outcomes; coordination with community
organizations and resources; involvement with Continuum -of Care/Local Service Delivery Area;
soundness of approach; cost proposal, budget and leveraging of resources; accurate and timely
utilization of Homeless Management Information System; staff experience and credentials; compliance
with rules, statutes and life safety codes; increase in bed capacity; and increase in
prevention/intervention or essential services. Each applying organization was required to submit a
separate proposal for each program, which allowed for budgets and program models to be evaluated
independently. Fifty (50) separate proposals that could be funded through State Grant-In-Aid, from 35
organizations, were evaluated and scored.

Homeless Housing and Access Fund

The Vendor shall also utilize Homeless Housing and Access Loan Funds to provide loans for the first
month of rent and/or security deposit for homeless individuals and families. To be eligible, applicants
shall have no permanent address and shall be residing temporarily in a shelter for the homeless, a
hotel, a motel, the home of another household designed for occupancy by only one household, or
entirely without shelter. Repayment terms of the loans are determined by the contracted agencies.
The Homeless Housing and Access Loan Fund continues to expand the capacity of the Housing
Security Guarantee Program by providing one month’s rent in addition to the security deposit. This
program assists homeless individuals and families in securing affordable housing that they have
previously not been able to secure due to lack of resources.

Similar to the State Grant-In-Aid Request for Proposal, this Request for Proposal was also issued at
the annual NH Homeless Provider and Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012.
The Request for Proposal was also posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’ website.

Housing Security Guarantee Program

Effective November 1, 1993, RSA 126-A: 51, Program Established, created the statewide Housing
Security Guarantee Program to address the issue of the “...inability of individual citizens to amass
sufficient funds for housing security deposits...” and how this “...contributes significantly to the problem
of homelessness in the state of New Hampshire...” The enabling legislation allowed the Department to
contract out the administration of this program. The program administration has been contracted out to
the Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. since 1994, who aiso acis as ine
fiscal agent for this program. Housing Security Guarantee Loan Programs are functioning in all
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counties through five community action agencies and two community-based nonprofit homeless
prevention/intervention service providers.

The Housing Security Guarantee Program guarantees payment of security deposits to landlords in
instances where low-income households cannot afford ‘a security deposit. Typically, tenants make
monthly payments to the administrative agency until the full amount of their security deposit is
collected. That amount is then forwarded to the landlord. Even if the tenant defaults before the entire
amount is paid, the administrative agency is still responsible for payment in the full amount to the

landlord.

Similar to the State Grant-In-Aid Request for Proposal, this Request for Proposals was also issued at
the annual NH Homeless Providers and Homeless Education Liaisons Conference on October 24,
2012. The Request for Proposals was also posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’

website.

From the inception of this program in 1994, through June 30, 2013, it has assisted 11,865 households
(with an outstanding guarantee amount of $1,160,174.75) to access housing by providing security
deposit loan vouchers to participating landlords, and by guaranteeing full deposit payment in the event
of a claim by a participating landiord. Participating households who are vouchered make scheduled
monthly installment payments toward full security deposit repayment.

Security deposit vouchers are available to persons who are considered “very low income” according to
the US Department of Housing and Urban Development. These are traditionally individuals that do not
qualify for bank financing and face homelessness without this assistance. Repayment terms are
scheduled according to the ability of individuals to repay. As a part of this program, participating
individuals also receive budget counseling and other supportive services to assist them in maintaining
independence. Repayment efforts are made by phone, by mail and personal contact. The high
repayment rate of program participants is an indication of successful repayment arrangements by
service providers.

The impressive results of this program are well documented. This program replaced cash assistance
grants for security deposits to prevent homelessness with a voucher-based loan program for those at
the lowest income scale. This means money that, in the past, would have been an outright grant to
very low-income households is now being repaid by clients over time. From 1994 to 2013,
$7,015,258.74 in vouchers has been issued. Of this amount, 72% have resulted in successful tenancy.

Homeless Qutreach Intervention Prevention

This agreement also provides funds from the Department of Housing and Urban Development
Supportive Housing Demonstration for Homeless Outreach Intervention Prevention (HOIP). HOIP is a
collaborative project between Community Action Agencies and the State of NH, Bureau of Homeless
and Housing Services. It is designed to provide aggressive street outreach and intervention services to
the unsheltered homeless throughout the state. The Bureau has administered this program for 18
years. The Department of Housing and Urban Development requires a Continuum of Care process for
communities seeking these funds. A Continuum is a coordinated planning approach to setting
priorities for the housing and service needs of homeless people within a specific area. The Continuum
includes broad participation of community stakeholders. Through this process, New Hampshire
submits an annual application in response to the Department of Housing and Urban Development’s
Notice of Funding Availability. Once the Notice is announced, the Bureau notifies all participants in the
Continuum to submit project applications. The Department of Housing and Urban Development scores
the application and awards funding based on their criteria. The Bureau receives notification from the
Department of Housing and Urban Development several months later regarding the awards.
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In 1994, with input from providers throughout the country, the Department of Housing and Urban
Development developed the Continuum concept to support communities in their efforts to address the
problems of housing and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic fashion. The
Continuum serves three main purposes: (1) a strategic planning process for addressing homelessness
in the community; (2) a process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing
homelessness on a year-round basis; and (3) an opportunity to submit an application to the
Department of Housing and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services
for homeless individuals and families. Although law does not mandate the Continuum, in order to
obtain Department of Housing and Urban Development housing and support services resources,
communities must conduct a Continuum process and submit a Continuum application to the
Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The Vendors will utilize the Supportive Housing Grant funds and matching funds for essential services
and operations of the Homeless Outreach Intervention Program, such as assistance in obtaining
emergency shelter, staff wages and benefits, client emergency assistance, and transportation. It is
anticipated that the contract will serve approximately 200 individuals statewide.

The Bureau assures contract compliance and provider performance through the following: 1) annual
compliance reviews are performed, including the collection of data relating to compliance and
contractual agreements; and 2) statistical reports are submitted on a monthly basis from all Homeless
Outreach Intervention Prevention providers, including various demographic information and monthly
billing invoices, including expense reports and program match dollars

Criteria for selection was the same as that for State Grant-In-Aid funding. As a result of this RFP, six
proposals were received, evaluated and scored. All proposals met or exceeded the minimum score
required for funding.

The Bureau assures contract compliance and provider performance through the following:

1) Annual compliance reviews are performed, including the collection of data relating to compliance
with administrative rules and contractual agreements;

2) Statistical reports are submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded providers, including various
demographic information reports, as well as income and expense reports, including match dollars; and

3) All providers funded for shelter, transitional housing, or outreach services will be required to maintain
timely and accurate data entry on the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
unless they are required by law to use an alternate data collection. The NH Homeless Management
Information System will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs funded through these contracts.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this Request, shelter and homeless
prevention resources for people who are homeless may not be available in their community, and there
will be an increase in demand statewide placed upon local welfare authorities. People who are without
housing and resources will resort to seeking local shelter in places that are not fit for people to live in,
or will attempt to travel to shelters in other communities. This will increase the likelihood that homeless
people will be in danger of injury or death, and will be cut off from basic supports for health, education
and treatment. Numerous jobs would also be lost since the shelter and/or resource agencies would
(V]

P
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Area served: Belknap and Merrimack Counties

Source of funds:

" State Grant in Aid- 100% General Funds, $383,968

Housing Security Guarantee Program — 100% General Funds, $60,000
Homeless Housing and Access Fund — 100% General Funds, $16,750
Homeless Outreach Intervention Program- 100% Federal Funds, $86,210

Respectfully submitted,

Approved by:

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner



A Request for Proposal for state funding was issued at the annual NH Homeless Provider and
Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The Request for Proposal was
also posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’ website.

Shelter Programs . Evaluation Score| HMIS Utilization| Total Score
Laconia Area Community 98 9.8 107.8
Front Door Agency 95 10 105
Families in Transition - Concord 92.5 10 102.5
Helping Hands Outreach Ministries 92 8.6 100.6
Families in Transition - Family Place/Amherst 90.5 10 100.5
New Horizons for New Hampshire 90.5 9.5 100
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Keystone

Hall) 90 9.8 99.8
Families in Transition - Lowell St 89.5 10 99.5
Families in Transition - Family Place/Spruce St 89.5 10 99.5
Bridge House 90.5 8.6 99.1
Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter, Inc 88.5 10 98.5
Child and Family Services of New Hampshire 88 10 98
[The Way Home 88.5 9.4 97.9
Families in Transition - Family Willows/Millyard I 88 9.2 97.2
Families in Transition - Manchester Emergency 86.5 10 96.5
Marguerite's Place, Inc 86.5 10 96.5
Harbor Homes Inc 86.5 9.8 96.3
Salvation Army - Laconia (Carey House) 87 9.1 96.1
Cross Roads House, Inc 84.5 10 94.5
Greater Nashua Interfaith Hospitality Network 85.5 8 93.5
My Friend's Place 82.5 9.5 92
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual

Violence 83 8 91
Samaritans (Mary's Place) 81 9 90
Southwestern Community Services - Claremont 80.5 8.5 89
New Generations, Inc 79 9.6 88.6
Friends Program 78.5 10 88.5
First Congregational Church 81.5 6.5 88
Salvation Army - Concord (McKenna House) 78 10 88
Southwestern Community Services - Keene 80.5 7 87.5
Headrest, Inc 79 4.7 83.7
Veteran Homestead, Inc 75.5 8 83.5
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc (Tyler

Blaine) 75.5 7.5 83

Prevention Programs

Evaluation Score

IAIDS Response Seacoast 103
Southwestern Community Services 99
iThe Way Home 99
NH Legal Assistance 98.5
Harbor Homes, Inc 98
St. John Neumann Church Outreach 98
Front Door Agency 97
Merrimack Valley Assistance Program 96.5
Belknap-Merrimack Community Action Program,

Inc - New Start 96




Strafford County Community Action Committee,

Inc 95

Belknap-Merrimack Community Action Program,

Inc - Prevention 93

NH 211 (United Ways of New Hampshire) - Hotel 92.5

NH 211 (United Ways of New Hampshire) -

Hotline - 92

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire 91

Southern New Hampshire Services 89

Southern New Hampshire Services (Rockingham

Program) 89
ri-County Community Action Program, Inc 71

\Veteran Homestead, Inc 61

Due to the quantity of proposals received, the reviewers were organized into twelve (12) teams,
which met and presented their final evaluations and scores. The review committee teams
included the following individuals:

Natalie Allen, BA, MBA, Retired NH Department of Health and Human Services
Employee — Over 30 years of social services most recently as a Community Relations
Manager, served on the Local Service Delivery Areas of Concord and Laconia, and as a
member of the Balance of State Continuum of Care

Michael Bilson, BA, Program Plannér 1, Office of Consumer and Family Affairs, Bureau of
Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of
Health and Human Services

John Capuco, Psy. D, Administrator, Bureau of Developmental Services, Division of
Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Christopher Cullinan, BA, MPA, Manager of Ryan White CARE Program, Division of
Public Health, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Sharon Drake, BS, Chief Executive Officer, Serenity Place (an NCADD Affiliate)

Margaret Fogarty, MA, BA, Economic Justice Project Coordinator, American Friends
Service Committee

Ellen Fries, BA, Concord Coalition to End Homelessness
Sherry Gould, Director, Wijokadoak, Inc

Bill Guinther, BA, Program Policy Analyst at New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority
(NHHFA)

Janet Horne, Business, Systems Analyst |, Bureau of Behavioral Health, Division of
Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

David Keller, Former Minister at Concord’s First Congregational Church

Janine A Lesser, BS, MS, Child Care Program Specialist IV, TANF Policy Unit, Division
of Family Assistance, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Sandra Matheson, Director, State Office Victim/Witness Assistance, NH Attorney
General's Office

William McGonagle, Assistant Commissioner, NH Department of Corrections

Niki Miller, MS, Senior Project Associate at Advocates for Human Potential, formerly
Administrator of Women Offenders for NH Department of Corrections



» Karen Orsini, MSN, RN, Director of Quality Improvement, Bureau of Behavioral Health,
Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Heaith and Human
Services

o Linda J Parker BS CPM Program Specialist IV Division of Community Based Care

o Bernadette Pelczar, BA, MSW, Social Worker A
s Kimberly Perez, PhD, Family HIV Program Manager, Dartmouth-Hitchcock

» Myriam Roeder, Adoption Manager, Division of Child, Youth and Families, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

» Todd Ringelstein, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of Developmental
Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

» Michael Rogers, MHA, MT, MC, Assistant Administrator, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and
Human Services

¢ Marianne Savarese, BS, RN, Project Director of Health Care for the Homeless Program-

e Barbara Thorngren, M.Ed, Collaborative Education Consultant for PeaceWorks New
Hampshire, LLC

o Kristina Toth, BA, Administrator, Family Connections Center, NH Department of
Corrections

« Sally Varney, BA, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of Community
Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

+ " Dave Villiotti, MS, Executive Director, Nashua Children’s Home

¢ Donna Walker, BBA, MBA, Business Administrator 1V, Bureau of Behavioral Health,
Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human
Services

o Kathleen Walton, Masters in Human Service Administration, Human Service Director,
Town of Salem

A funding distribution formula for State Grant-In-Aid was designed during March 2013, based on
the most current projections of State Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015 funding available at that time.
This total was approximately 4% more than the State Fiscal Years 2012 and 2013 total of State
Grant-In-Aid funding. One prevention program, Veteran Homestead, Inc, received a score of 61,
which was below the guideline score of 65; therefore, they were only awarded level funding for
their program. One shelter program, Veteran Homestead, Inc, was not funded, especially when
taking into consideration the placement of the proposal in the rankings of the shelter program
scores, because the proposal was for a new shelter request and not a renewal shelter request.



A Request for Proposal for state funding was issued at the annual NH Homeless
Provider and Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The Request
for Proposal was also posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’

website.

Homeless Housing Access Revolving Loan Fund
Programs Evaluation Score
The Way Home 98.5
- |Front Door Agency 97
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc 96
Southern New Hampshire Services 94
Southwestern Community Services 84.5
Belknap-Merrimack Community Action Program, Inc 81

As a result of this RFP, six proposals were received, evaluated and scored. All proposals
met or exceeded the minimum score required for funding.

Criteria for selection included: proposal includes all elements and is assembled as
required; program design and need for project; performance measures and identified
outcomes; staff experience and credentials; coordination with community organizations
and resources; involvement with Continuum of Care/Local Service Delivery Area;
soundness of approach; cost effectiveness and leveraging of resources; and compliance
with rules and statutes.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: State Grant in Aid Program and Homeless Qutreach Intervention Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
: GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2  State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. PO Box 1016
Concord, NH 03302-1016

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation
Number 05-95-42-423010-7925
(603) 225-3295 95-42-423010-7927 June 30, 2015 $546,928.00
N05-95-42-423010-7928 :
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Maureen U. Ryan, Bureau Administrator (603) 2719197
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

M Ralph Littlefield, Executive Director

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of iy, County of _Merrimack

10/14 TP
On / s ée]fgre the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that sthe executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice-of the Peace

[Seall EAWE ﬁ&aw@

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary orJus‘tice-aﬂhePeu" ’

N. ROUNDY, Notary Public
wECLQanisslon Expires August 24, 2016

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

/77/4‘4/7'4—74 a1 Coen
/ Ascoc, a4y CMI&@/OWv

1.14  State Agency Signature

1.16 Wl by the N.@pﬁrtment of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17  Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

& JANY A
By: m 7 M%I/qﬁofﬂt> On: ! Nov. 2013

1.18  Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

By: On:

Page | of 4 g%
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACT. .SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

Page 2 of 4

5.4 Notwithstandii._ any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws. :

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Date:

Contractor Initials: /g 6



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers® compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain « .:ause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PAR,.£S. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement. .

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Departme.. of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid, Homeless Outreach and Prevention Program and HHARLF

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

State Grant In Aid Program

1. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES:

1.1. Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to comply with
the program narrative, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, for Services,
operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation as approved by the Bureau of Homeless and
Housing Services, Office of Human Services, Department of Health and Human Services,
hereafter referred to as the State.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may impact on the Services described herein, the State
has the right, following consultation with the Contractor, to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements for the funds provided under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are applicable
to the funding of the Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation. Appropriate
records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document actual funds received or denials of
funding from such public sources of funds.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide semiannual and annual report information data by service modality
describing the number of unduplicated cases served, units of services rendered, and staff
required to provide the service, as may be required by the State. Monthly reports may be
required at the discretion of the State. Reports shall include, but are not limited to, details of
progress and achievements toward the following key program outcomes:

1.4.1. 70% of households that receive this prevention assistance will achieve immediate
housing stability.

1.4.2. Atleast 60% of households that receive this prevention assistance will not experience
and episode of homelessness within 12 months.

1.5. All programs under this contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or
permanent programs are required to be licensed to provide client level data into the New
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs under this
contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including specific information that is
required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data entry. Current NH
HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through the following website: http://iwww.nh-
hmis.org.

1.6. Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into HMIS in a timely fashion could result in the
delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or data entries are
confirmed by the State.

2. SERVICES:
The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will provide
services in accordance with the description(s) cited below:

2.1. New Hampshire Emergency Shelter State Grant-In-Aid Program RSA 126-A:25, 126-A:27, 126-

A:28, 126-A:29, and 126-A 50-63 as well as He-M 314 and He-M-1007

2.2. Contractor shall use the New Hampshire Emergency Shelter State Grant-In-Aid funds for:

& Prevention/Intervention Services, such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent
homelessness.

& Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing, employment
counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing other community services,
and staff salaries and benefits.

Operations Activities, including shelter operational costs such as rent, utilities, insurance,
and supplies.

Homeless Housing and Access Revolving Loan Fund, to provide loans for the first month of
rent and/or security deposit for homeless individuals and famities.

Contractor Initiais
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New Hampshire Departme  »f Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid, Homeless Outreach and Prevention Program and HHARLF

Exhibit A

& Housing Security Guarantee Program, to provide guarantees of rental security deposits to
eligible persons.

Homeless Outreach and Prevention Program (HOIP)

1. Provisions applicable to HOIP services:

1.1. Programs contracted to provide HOIP services must maintain client level data as required by the
State. All contracted programs licensed to provide client level data into New Hampshire
Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS) shall utilize the Entry-Exit process for
every client entered into NH HMIS. Entry/Exit dates and outreach contact assessments must be
completed within 45 days of initial contact. Outreach contract providers who are not currently
entering client level data into NH HMIS must provide Homeless Outreach Contact Forms for
clients seen the first 15 days of the month and the last 15-16 days of the month within 5
business days to the State.

2. Services:
Contractor shall utilize Supportive Housing Grant Funds and matching funds for essential services and

operations of the Homeless Outreach and Intervention Program (HO!P) including staff wages and
benefits. Services include outreach and engagement with unsheltered homeless persons, basic needs
assessment, assistance in obtaining emergency shelter, client emergency assistance, transportation, and
linkages to needed services or benefits.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials )
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant in Aid and Homeless Outreach and Prevention Program
Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

State Grant In Aid Program
The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —~ State Grant In

Aid Program.

This contract is funded 100% by the New Hampshire General Fund as follows:

NH General Funds:

SFY14 not to exceed $230,359.00 - -
SFY15 not to exceed $230,359.00
Federal Funds: Not Applicable

1. PROGRESS REPORTS:
Semi-annual and annual financial and statistical progress reports which identify the status of the
Services performed, the outlook for completion of the remaining services prior to the Completion Date
and the changes, if any, which need to be made to the services, shali be submitted by the 15th of the
month following the end of each six month period on forms supplied by the State.

2. PROJECT COSTS; PAYMENT OF PROJECT COSTS; REVIEW BY THE STATE

2.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Services, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment.

2.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to exceed and
for the specific time period specified above.

2.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Project Costs at the conclusion of
each monthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. in no event shall the funds
provided exceed the amounts specified above.

2.4. Review by the State, Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the Services,
and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the
State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.
Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expense which are not determined to be
allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shali, by written notice
specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the
State disallows costs for which payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs.

3. LINEITEM TRANSFERS: :

No more than 10% of funds in each budget line can be transferred between line items as appears on
the budget page without the prior written authorization from the State. Any expenditures which
exceed the approved budgets shall be solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However,
such excess expenditures may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is
permissible by this Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing
the Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to incur

" additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior written authorization
from the State.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials / E r)
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New Hampshire Departmen;:.-"of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid and Homeless Outreach and Prevention Program
Exhibit B

State Grant In Aid Program Budget detail

EXPENSE BUDGET for SFY14 and SFY15:

EXPENSE ITEM State GIA Funds Match
Prevention/Intervention $103,950.00 $103,950.00
Rent with eviction notice,
mortgage with foreclosure notice,
utilities with disconnect notice,
and other activities to prevent
homelessness
Essential Services (New Start) $140,018.00 $140,018.00
Assistance in finding permanent
housing, employment counseling,
substance abuse counseling,
assistance in accessing other
community services and staff
salaries and benefits
Operations N/A N/A
Shelter operational costs such as
rent, utilities, insurance, supplies
and taxes
Homeless Housing and Access $16,750.00 N/A
Revolving Loan Fund
Housing Security Guarantee $60,000.00 | N/A
Data Analysis $140,000.00 N/A

TOTALS . -$460,718.00 . $243,968.00
TOTAL GlA+Match $704,686.00

Homeless Outreach and Prevention Program
The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A — Homeless

Outreach and Prevention Program.

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made available
under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.235

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Supportive Housing Program

Total Amount Supportive Housing Program;

SFY14: not to exceed $86,210.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund the
Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Supportive Housing
Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the time period specified above.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid and Homeless Outreach and Prevention Program

Exhibit B
2. REPORTS.
As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to submit the
following:

2.1. Audited Financial Report. The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance with

22.

2.3.

the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies of the audited financial
report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion of said report to the State.
Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within ninety
(90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited financial report shall
be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing the guidelines set forth in
“Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions” by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Progress Reports: Semiannual and annual financial and statistical progress reports which
identify the status of the Services performed, the outlook for completion of the remaining
services prior to the Completion Date and the changes, if any, which need to be made to the
services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the month following the end of each six month period
on forms supplied by the State.

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1

3.2.

3.3.

Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time
to time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to exceed the
Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. of the General Provisions of the Agreement. The State
agrees to provide funds for homeless services in payments in accordance with such other
schedules as may be required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
under the provisions of 24 CFR Part 576, Emergency Shelter Grants Program; Stewart B.
McKinney Homeless Assistance Act and all applicable regulations.

The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Federal funds at the conclusion of
each bimonthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In no event shall the
funds provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. of the General Provisions.
Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, Contractor may invoice for balance of
contracted amount as specified in block 1.8 based on documentation of expenditures.

Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time dunng the performance of the Services,
and upon receipt of the Quarterly Reports, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the
State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.
Upon such review the State shall disallow any items of expenses that are not determined to be
allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice
specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the
State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to pay such
costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement are subject to
recapture pursuant to 24 CFR Subsection 576.55. The funds authorized to be expended under
this Agreement shall be used only for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration
or reimbursement for expenditures for operations, supportive services, leasing and
administration, provided by the Contractor for the project period and operating years of the
Supportive Housing Program as approved by HUD and in accordance with the Supportive
Housing Program Regulations, published at 24 CFR Part 583.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.
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4.1. The State agrees to provide payment for actual costs, up to the Total Program Amount as
defined in this Exhibit, as defined by HUD under the provisions of P.L. 102-550 and applicable
regulations.

42, The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreages or the
creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract price. Such
amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written approval from the State.

4.3. Conformance to OMB Circular A-110: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements, and principles specified in OMB Circular A-110.

4.4. Conformance to 24 CFR Part 84: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements, and principles specified in 24 CFR Part 84.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

5.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

5.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with Attachment G
of A-102, “Standards of Contractor Financial Management Systems” or such equivalent system
as the State may require. Requests for payment shall be made according to EXHIBIT B, Section

3.2 of this Agreement.
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2.

3.

Special Provisions

Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. A
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement
are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent
changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or
executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of
funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in
whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of
appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into
the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

Add the following to Paragraph 5:

5.5. Upon execution of the Contract and satisfaction by the Contractor of any conditions in the
Notification of Funding Approval, the State shall provide the Contractor with the funds, in
accordance with EXHIBIT B of this Contract Agreement, in the amount specified in the attached
Notification of Funding Approval.

5.6. Funds obligated under this Contract shall not be increased but may be decreased in
accordance with this Contract and 24 CFR 841.400(b) and (c).

Add the following to Paragraph 6.1:

6.1. In connection with the performance of the Services, the Contractor shall comply with all
statutes, laws, regulations, and orders of federal, state, country, or municipal authorities which
impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights,
equal opportunity and housing laws, Section 101 (g), P.L. 99-500, Title VIHi of the Civil Rights
Act of 1968, and Executive Order No. 11063, as implemented by the regulations at 24 CFR

Part 107.

Add the following to Paragraph 6.:
6.4. The Contractor certifies as follows:
6.4.1. that the grant funds provided pursuant to this Contract shall be used in accordance
' with the requirements and provisions of this Contract, the Supportive Housing
Program regulations, and the Application including the Fair Housing and Equal
Opportunity Certifications and the Applicant Certifications contained in Exhibit 4 of the
Application;

6.4.2. that the grant funds shall not be used to replace State or local assistance program
funds used to assist homeless persons during the calendar year preceding the date of
the Application or were designated for such use through an official action of the
applicable governmental entity during the calendar year preceding the date of the

Application;

6.4.3. that no more than five percent of the grant funds may be used for administrative
expenses,;

6.4.4. that, except as provided at 24 CFR Subsection 573.33(1)(4)(ii), the Contractor shall
not: ,

6.4.4.1. conduct renovation, major rehabilitation, or conversion of any building listed
on the National Register of Historic Places; located in an historic district;
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immediately adjacent to a property listed on the National Register; or
deemed to be eligible for inclusion on the National Register by the State
Historic Preservation Officer;

6.4.4.2. conduct any such activity taking place in a 100-year flood plain designated by
Map oy the redeial Cimeigency mvianagement Ageicy,

6.4.4.3. conduct any such activity which will jeopardize the continued existence of an
endangered or threatened species designated by the U.S. Department of the
Interior's Fish and Wildlife Service or by the U.S. Department of Commerce’s
National Maritime Fisheries Service, or affecting the critical habitat of such as
species; and

6.4.4.4. be inconsistent with HUD’s environmental standards at 24 CFR Part 51 or
with the State’s Coastal Zone Management Plan;

6.4.5. that the Contractor shall make it known that use of the facilities and services is
available to all on a nondiscriminatory basis. Where the procedures that the
Contractor intends to use to make known the availability of services are unlikely to
reach persons of any particular race, color, religion, age, creed, sex, handicap, or
national origin who may qualify for such services, the Contractor must establish
additional procedures that will ensure that these persons are made aware of the
facility and services;

6.4.6. that the submission of applications for grants is authorized under State or local law
and that the Contractor possesses legal authority to carry out the grants activities in
accordance with applicable law and regulations of the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development;.

6.4.7. that the Contractor shall comply with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity
requirements of 24 CFR 841.330(a);

6.4.8. that the Contractor shall comply with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969,
42 U.S.C. 4332, implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 50 and the Coastal Barriers
Resources Act of 1982 (16 U.S.C. 3601); and

6.4.9. that the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Lead-Based Paint
Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846) as described in 24 CFR 841.330(d).

5. Add the following to Paragraph 7.:

7.4. It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that in discharging its obligations under this
Agreement, the Contractor shall ensure that no person (1) who is an employee, agent,
consultant, officer, or elected or appointed official of the Contractor, subcontractor, or the State
that receives Supportive Housing Grant amounts who exercises or has exercised any functions
or responsibilities with respect to assisted activities or (2) who is in a position to participate in a
decision making process or gain inside information with regard to such activities, may obtain a
personal or financial interest or benefit from the activity, or have an interest in any contract,
subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for him or
herself or those with whom he or she has family or business ties, during his or her tenure or for
one year thereafter.

7.5. The Contractor shall not employ, engage for services, award contracts or fund any contractors
or subcontractors during any period of their debarment, suspension or placement in ineligibility
status as determined pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.

6. Add the following to Paragraph 8.:

8.3. The State may deobligate amounts for any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or a moderate
rehabilitation grant if the total costs of the acquisition/rehabilitation or moderate rehabilitation
are less than the approved grant.

84. The State may deobligate funds made available under this Contract if any proposed
acquisition/rehabilitation or moderate rehabilitation activities are not begun or completed in
accordance with the development schedule contained in the Appllcatlon or within a reasonable
time thereafter.
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8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

8.8.

8.9.

The Contractor shall repay the full amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or
moderate rehabilitation grant if it fails to use the structure for supportive housing for the
homeless for a ten year period following the initial occupancy with funding under this
Agreement.

-For each full year that the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless following the
expiration of the ten year period, the amount of the acquisition/rehabilitation advance that the
Contractor will be required to repay will be reduced by one-tenth of the original advance.

If the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless for twenty years following the
date of initial occupancy, the Contractor will not be required to repay any portion of the
acquisition/rehabilitation advance given under this Agreement.

Upon the Contractor’s written request, the State may determine that the Project is no longer
needed as transitional housing for the homeless and may approve an alternate use of the
Project for the direct benefit of lower income persons. In such event, for purposes of
determining the Contractor's repayment obligations, the Project will continue to be treated a
supportive housing for the homeless as long as it is used for the approved alternate purpose.

if the Project is taken by eminent domain or seizure, the Contractor must repay the
acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant to the extent that funds
are available from the eminent domain or other proceeding.

7. Add the following to Paragraph 9.:

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit C Contractor Initials

Between the effective date and a date five years after the Completion Date, at any time during
the Contractor's normal business hours, and as often as the State shall reasonably demand,
the Contractor shall make available to the State all data for examination, duplication,
publication, translation, or for any other purpose. Nothing in this Subparagraph shall require
the Contractor to make available data that would violate any statute, other provisions of this
Agreement, or agreements with unrelated third parties. The term “Contractor” includes all
persons, natural or fictional, who are controlled by, under common ownership with, or an
affiliate of, the entity identified as the Contractor in Paragraph 1.3. of the General Provisions of
this Agreement.

During the performance of the Project Activities and for a period of five (5) years after the

Compiletion Date, the Contractor shall keep the following records and accounts:

9.5.1. Records of Direct Work: Detailed records of all direct work performed by its personnel
under this Agreement.

9.5.2. Fiscal Records: Books, records, documents and other statistical data evidencing and
permitting a determination to be made by the State of all Project Costs and other
expenses incurred by the Contractor and all income received or collected by the
Contractor during the performance of the Project Activities. The said records shall be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices acceptable to the
State, and which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, shall
include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original invoices, vouchers,
bills, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in kind contributions, labor
time cards, payrolls and other records requested or required by the State.

9.5.3. Contracior and Subcontractor Records: The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and
preserve and require each of its contractors and subcontractors to establish, maintain,
and preserve property management, project performance, financial management and
reporting documents and systems, and such other books, records, and other data
pertinent to the project as the State may require. Such records shall be retained for a
period of five (5) years following completion of the project and receipt of final payment
by the Contractor, or until an audit is completed and all questions arising therefrom are
resolved, whichever is later.

Audits and Inspections: During the performance of the Project Activities and the five (5) year

retention period, at any time during normal business hours and as often as the State, HUD, or

the Comptroller General of the United States, together or separately, may deem necessary, the

Contractor shall make available to the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptroiler

General, as requested, all records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The
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Contractor shall permit the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptroller General,
collectively or separately, to audit, examine and reproduce such records, and to make audits of
all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data and other invoices,
materials payrolls records of personnel, data and other information relating to all matters

A im thin A smranmasemd
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8. Subparagraph 10.of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the

following language:

10.1. The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

. In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with State and shall promptly provide detailed information
to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by
the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide
ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4. In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about
the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan
submitted to the State as described above.

-
©
)

9. Add the following to Paragraph 14:

14.4. The Contractor shall obtain property, casualty or hazard insurance in an amount at least equal
to the amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant
provided to the Contractor. The Contractor shall assure that such insurance remains in full
force during the term of the commitment to provide supportive housing for the homeless.

10. Add the following to Paragraph 20:
20.1. DEVELOPMENT

20.1.1. The Contractor assures that it has control of the site and/or structure to be used for
the Project as described in the Application and EXHIBIT A of this Contract.

20.1.2. The Contractor shall keep and maintain such books, records, and other documents as
required by the State as may be necessary to reflect and disclose fully the amount and
disposition of grant funds, and the total cost of activities paid for, in whole or in part,
with grant funds.

20.2. OPERATION

20.2.1. The Contractor agrees that it will facilitate the provision of necessary supportive
services to the residents of the Project.

20.2.2. The Contractor shall assure that the Project will be operated in accordance with the
Project Sponsor Executive Officer Certifications contained in EXHIBIT 4 of the
Application.

20.2.3. The Contractor shall operate the Project as transitional housing for homeless persons
for a ten-year period following the initial occupancy with grant funds provided pursuant
to this Contract.

20.2.4. In the event the Project is not operated as supportive housing for the homeless for ten
years following the initial occupancy with grant funds as provided in Paragraph 1.8.
above, the Contractor shall repay the full amount of the grant funds in accordance with
Paragraph 8. of this Contract.
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20.2.5.

20.2.6.

20.2.7.

20.2.8.

The Contractor shall assure that residents in the Project will be charged rent in
accordance with section 3(a) of the United States Housing Act of 1337, which requires
residents to pay the highest of (1) 30 percent of the family’s monthly income (adjusted
in accordance with 24 CFR 841.320); (2) 10 percent of the family’'s monthly income; or
(3) if the family is receiving payments for welfare assistance from a public agency and
a part of the payments, adjusted in accordance with the family’s actual housing costs,
is specifically designated by the agency to meet the family’s housing costs, the portion
of the payments that is designated. :

The Contractor shall conduct an ongoing assessment of the supportive services
required by the residents in the Project.

The Contractor shall provide a residential supervisor, as specified in the Application,
who will facilitate the adequate provision of supportive services to the residents of the
housing throughout the term of the commitment to operate the Project as supportive
housing for the homeless.

The Contractor shall provide safe and sanitary housing and shall comply with all State
and local housing codes, licensing requirements and other requirements regarding the
condition of the structure and the operation of the Project.

20.3. SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAM COVENANTS

20.3.1.

20.3.2.

20.3.3.

If the structure used for supportive housing is owned or leased by the Contractor,
restrictions regarding the use of the structure will be contained in a covenant, running
with the land recorded in the land records of the jurisdiction in which the structure is
located.

The covenant running with the land, required in Paragraph 20.3.1 above, must state
that the owner and his or her successors, assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall, if
the Project is not used as supportive housing for homeless persons for ten years
following initial occupancy with contract funds, the owner, his/her successors and
assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall be required to repay the full amount of the
grant unless HUD determines that the Project is no longer needed for use as
supportive housing for homeless persons and approves the use of the Project for the
direct benefit of lower income persons.

The Contractor shall ensure that the covenants required by Paragraph 20.2.5 above,
are recorded prior to the commencement of any acquisition or rehabilitation activity,
for a Project receiving a rehabilitation advance or a moderate rehabilitation grant, or,
for a Project receiving an acquisition advance, recorded immediately after the
recording of the deed for the structure acquired with the acquisition advance.

20.4. OTHER PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS
If a structure rehabilitated with grant funds is leased from a religious organization, the

Contractor shall ensure that the lease contains the following provisions:

20.4.1
204.2.

20.4.3.

20.4.4.

20.4.5.

20.4.6.

CA/DHHS/100213

the leased premises will be used exclusively for secular purposes and be available to
all persons regardless of religion; and

the lease payments will not exceed the fair market rent of the structure without the
rehabilitation; and

the cost of improvements that benefit any portion of the structure that is not used for
the provision of supportive housing for the homeless is allocated to and paid for by the
religious organization, and

uniess the lessee, or a successor lessee acceptable to the State, retains the use of
the leased premises for a wholly secular purpose for at least the useful life of the
improvements, the lessor will pay to the lessee, within a reasonable time, an amount
equal to the residential value of the improvements, and

the Contractor shall comply with the policies, guidelines and requirements of OMB
Circular Number A-87 and A-102 as set forth in 24 CFR Part 85, except the
requirements of 24 CFR 85.24 are modified by 24 CFR 841.125 and the requirements
of 24 CFR 85.31 are modified by 24 CFR 841.310 and 841.315, and

the Contractor's financial management system shall provide for audits in accordance
with 24 CFR Part 44, and
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20.4.7. the Contractor shall keep any records and make any reports that the State may
require. Estimates for the cost of acquisition and/or rehabilitation or moderate
rehabilitation of the Project shall be supported by documentation on file and
maintained for at least three years of operation with funding under this program.
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ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Retroactive Payments — Individual Services

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document,
agreement or understanding, it is expressiy understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for any services provided to any individual
prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the
Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or
{except as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is

eligible for such services.

2. Retroactive Payments —~ Contractor Services

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document,
agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for any costs incurred for any purposes

prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement.

3. Audit Requirement
The Contractor shall deliver to the State, at the address set forth in Section 1.2 of these General

Provisions, an independent audit performed by a Certified Public Accountant, of the Contractor, including
the funds received under this Agreement.

The following requirement shall apply if the Contractor is a State or Local Government: If the federal
funds received under this or any other Agreement from any and all sources exceeds $25,000 in the
aggregate in a one year fiscal period the required audit shall be performed in accordance with the
provisions of OMB Circular A-128, Single Audits of State and Local Governments.

4. Credits
All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, and other materials prepared during or resuiting

from the performance of the services or the Agreement shall include the following statement. “The
preparation of this (report, document, etc.) was financed under an Agreement with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, with

funds provided in part or in whole by HUD.”
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitie D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-
21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a
grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one
certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the
federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of
fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
M The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
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